
COUNTRY GREENS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 

AGENDA PACKAGE 

AUGUST 26, 2019    

Page Number 1



Country Greens Community Development District 
 
Board of Supervisors:  
David Warden, Chairman Kristen Suit, District Manager 
Catherine Catasus, Vice Chairperson                                                   Scott Clark, District Counsel 
Alma Graham, Assistant Secretary    Rey Malave, District Engineer 
Crystal Jones, Assistant Secretary     Russell, Simmons, Field Manager 
Anna Heintzelman, Assistant Secretary                                                         

 
 
August 19, 2019           
      
Country Greens Community Development District 
Board of Supervisors 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Country Greens Community Development District will be 
held on Monday, August 26, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. at the Sorrento Christian Center, 32441 County Road 437, Sorrento, 
Florida.  Following is the advance agenda for this meeting. 
 

1. Roll Call 
2. Audience Comments 
3. Approval of the Minutes 

A.        June 24, 2019 Meeting     
 4.        District Manager’s Report 

           A.          Financial Statements and Check Register 
 B. ADA Website Compliance Proposals 
   i. ADA Site Compliance 
   ii. Campus Suite 
   iii. VGlobal Tech 
 C. District Insurance Proposals 
  i. PGIT PKG Proposal 
  ii. Egis FIA Proposal 
5. Staff Reports 

A. Attorney  
B. Engineer   
 i. Proposals for Sorrento Hills Pond   

 C. Field Manager 
  i. Field Management Report 
  ii. Proposals from Yellowstone to Replace Trees on Highway 44 

 6.      Other Business 
               7.      Supervisor Requests and Audience Comments 
               8.     Adjournment 

I look forward to seeing you at the meeting.  In the meantime, if you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Kristen Suit 
District Manager 
 
Access Code: #8185960 

Page Number 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Third Order of Business 
  

Page Number 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3A. 
  

Page Number 4



Unapproved 1 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
COUNTRY GREENS  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The regular meeting of the Country Greens Community Development District was 

held at 5:30 p.m. on Monday, June 24, 2019 at Sorrento Christian Center, 32441 County 

Road 437, Sorrento, Florida. 

 
Present and constituting a quorum were:   
 
David Warden Chairperson 
Catherine Catasus Vice Chairperson 
Alma Graham Assistant Secretary 
Crystal Jones (via telephone) Assistant Secretary 
Anna Heintzelman Assistant Secretary 

 
 Also present were: 
 
 Kristen Suit  District Manager 
 Rey Malavé  District Engineer 
 Ariel Medina  Field Supervisor 
 Pete Whitman  Yellowstone Landscaping 
 Mike Gaddis  Yellowstone Landscaping  
   
 The following is a summary of the minutes and actions taken at the June 24, 2019 

Country Greens Board of Supervisors meeting.     

` 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

o Ms. Suit called the meeting to order and called the roll.  

 
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

There being no audience comments, the next item followed. 

 
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes 

A. April 22, 2019   
o Ms. Suit stated each Board member received a copy of the minutes of the April 22, 

2019 meeting and requested any corrections, additions or deletions.  

o There not being any,  

 

Page Number 5



June 24, 2019               Country Greens CDD 

Unapproved 2 

On MOTION Ms. Catasus seconded by Ms. Heintzelman with 
all in favor the minutes of the April 22, 2019 meeting were 
approved. 

 
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing to Adopt the Fiscal 

Year 2020 Budget  
o Ms. Suit noted a motion to open the public hearing is needed. 

 
On MOTION Ms. Catasus seconded by Ms. Graham with all in 
favor the public hearing on the budget for Fiscal Year 2020 
was opened. 

 
 A.    Consideration of Resolution 2019-07 Adopting the Budget 

o Ms. Suit stated no changes were made to the budget, except for the addition of the 

$10,000 for website compliance.  We added an increase on landscaping and also 

developer contribution of $25,000. 

o Ms. Suit noted the total use of Fund Balance will be $99,127. 

o The public hearing was closed. 
 

On MOTION by Ms. Catasus seconded by Ms. Graham with 
all in favor the public hearing to adopt the budget for Fiscal 
Year 2020 was closed. 

 

On MOTOIN by Ms. Graham seconded by Ms. Catasus with 
all in favor, Resolution 2019-07, the annual appropriation 
resolution of the Country Greens Community Development 
District relating to the annual appropriations and adopting the 
budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2019, and 
ending September 30, 2020; authorizing budget amendments; 
and providing an effective date, was adopted. 

 
B. Consideration of Resolution 2019-08 Levy Assessments 

 
On MOTION Ms. Catasus seconded by Ms. Graham with all in 
favor Resolution 2019-08, a resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors the Country Greens Community Development 
District making a determination of benefit and imposing 
special assessments for Fiscal Year 2019/2020; providing for 
the collection and enforcement of special assessments; 
certifying an assessment roll; providing for amendments to the 
assessment roll; providing a severability clause; and providing 
an effective date, was adopted. 

Page Number 6



June 24, 2019               Country Greens CDD 

Unapproved 3 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS District Manager’s Report 
 A. Acceptance of Fiscal Year 2018 Audit  

o There being no comments,  

 
On MOTION by Ms. Catasus seconded by Ms. Graham with 
all in favor the Fiscal Year 2019 Audit was accepted. 

  
 B. Consideration of Proposals for ADA Website Compliance 

o Ms. Suit noted we will table this item until August, 2019.  
 
 C. Financial Statements and Check Register  

o There being no questions or comments,  
 
 

On MOTION by Ms. Catasus seconded by Ms. Graham with 
all in favor the financial statements were accepted and the 
check register was approved. 

 
 D. Proposed Meeting Dates for Fiscal Year 2020  

o Ms. Suit discussed the proposed meeting dates for Fiscal Year 2020 included in the 

agenda package. 

o The Board asked to change the December 16, 2019 meeting to December 9, 2019.   

 
On MOTION by Ms. Catasus seconded by Ms. Graham with 
all in favor the proposed meeting dates for Fiscal Year 2020 
were approved, with the exception of the December 16, 2019 
meeting to be changed to December 9, 2019.  

 
 E. Report on the Number of Registered Voters – 1,221   

o Lake County Supervisor of Elections reported that as of April 15, 2019, there were 

1,221 registered voters residing in the District.  

 
 F. Ratification of Executed Yellowstone Landscape Agreement  

o Ms. Suit noted the Board approved the Chairperson signing the landscaping 

agreement. 

o She is asking the Board to ratify the execution of the Yellowstone Landscape 

Agreement, which was done in between Board meetings. 

 

Page Number 7



June 24, 2019               Country Greens CDD 

Unapproved 4 

On MOTION by Ms. Catasus seconded by Ms. Heintzelman 
with all in favor Yellowstone Landsacpe Agreement was 
ratified.  

 
 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
 A. Attorney 
  i. Update of Sorrento Pines LLC Agreement with County Greens CDD 

o Ms. Suit noted Mr. Clark is not in attendance today. 

o Ms. Suit thanked Ms. Catasus who worked very hard to get this deal done.   

o They agreed to pay us the $25,000.  They will be paying that towards the end of this 

Fiscal Year, the beginning of the next Fiscal Year.   

o Then they come back with the Master Plan.  She noted Mr. Clark stated basically we 

want to make sure the Board is happy with the Development Plan and the conditions. 

o Mr. Malave and the Board discussed plans, lots, acreage and buffers. 

 
On MOTION by Ms. Heintzelman seconded by Ms. Catasus 
with all in favor Resolution 2019-09, a resolution of the Board 
of Supervisors of the Country Green Community Development 
District authorizing and approving the withdrawal of certain 
lands from the District, and establishing an effective date, was 
adopted.  

 

o Ms. Suit discussed the Consent Agreement.   
 

 
On MOTION by Ms. Catasus seconded by Ms. Graham with 
all in favor the Consent Agreement between Country Green 
Community Development District and Sorrento Pines, LLC 
was approved. 

 

B. Engineer 
 i. Sorrento Hills Pond 

o Mr. Malave discussed the storm water pond.  We ran the hydraulics.   

o Ms. Catasus noted we are entirely Sorrento Pines storm water disposal. 

o Mr. Malave noted that has never been taken care of well by the developer.  This has 

been a maintenance headache from day one.    

o Ms. Catasus noted she can give Mr. Malave names of vendors she has been in contact 

with in order to get proposals. 

Page Number 8



June 24, 2019               Country Greens CDD 

Unapproved 5 

o Mr. Malave will obtain proposals as well. 

 
 C. Field Manager 
  i. Field Management Report  

o The Board was updated on the Field Management Report. 

   
  ii.    Proposals for Pressure Washing Fence 

o The proposal from Simple Solutions Exterior Cleaning, LLC for pressure washing the 

fence, was discussed. 

 
On MOTION by Ms. Heintzelman seconded by Ms. Catasus 
with all in favor the proposal from Simple Solutions Exterior 
Cleaning, LLC, was approved in the amount of $2,900.   

 
 
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

o There not being any, the next item followed. 
 
 
EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests and Audience 

Comments 
o There not being any, the next item followed.     

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 There being no further business, 
 

On MOTION by Ms. Graham seconded by Mr. Warden with 
all in favor the meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
    
  David Warden  
Assistant Secretary Chairman 

Page Number 9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fourth Order of Business 
  

Page Number 10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4A. 
  

Page Number 11



COUNTRY GREENS

Prepared by

Community Development District

Financial Report

July 31, 2019

Page Number 12



COUNTRY GREENS

Community Development District

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page #

Balance Sheet - All Funds ………………………………………………….1

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund ………………………………………………….2 - 3

Debt Service Fund ………………………………………………….4

Notes to the Financial Statements ………………………………………………….5 - 6

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments - Collection Schedule ………………………………………………….7

Cash and Investment Report ………………………………………………….8

Bank Reconciliation ………………………………………………….9 - 10

Check Register …………………………… 11

Table of Contents

Page Number 13



COUNTRY GREENS

Community Development District

Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

July 31, 2019

Page Number 14



COUNTRY GREENS

Community Development District

Balance Sheet
July 31, 2019

Governmental Funds

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
GENERAL

FUND

SERIES
2016A DEBT

SERVICE
FUND TOTAL

ASSETS

Cash - Checking Account 53,292$ -$ 53,292$

Due From Other Funds - 4,044 4,044

Investments:

Certificates of Deposit - 12 Months 153,726 - 153,726

Certificates of Deposit - 6 Months 409,977 - 409,977

Money Market Account 229,880 - 229,880

Prepayment Fund (A-2) - 3,414 3,414

Reserve Fund (A-1) - 120,534 120,534

Reserve Fund (A-2) - 53,250 53,250

Revenue Fund - 74,376 74,376

Prepaid Items 1,549 - 1,549

TOTAL ASSETS 848,424$ 255,618$ 1,104,042$

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable -$ -$ -$

Accrued Expenses 20,000 - 20,000

Due To Other Funds 4,044 - 4,044

TOTAL LIABILITIES 24,044 - 24,044

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:

Prepaid Items 1,549 - 1,549

Restricted for:
Debt Service - 255,618 255,618

Assigned to:
Operating Reserves 71,850 - 71,850

Unassigned: 750,981 - 750,981

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 824,380$ 255,618$ 1,079,998$

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES 848,424$ 255,618$ 1,104,042$

Page 1

Page Number 15



COUNTRY GREENS

Community Development District General Fund

ANNUAL
ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

REVENUES

Interest - Investments 7,000$ 5,833$ 8,348$ 2,515$

Interest - Tax Collector - - 77 77

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 249,245 249,245 249,248 3

Special Assmnts- Discounts (9,970) (9,970) (9,471) 499

Other Miscellaneous Revenues - - 1,000 1,000

TOTAL REVENUES 246,275 245,108 249,202 4,094

EXPENDITURES

Administration
P/R-Board of Supervisors 6,000 5,000 4,800 200

FICA Taxes 459 382 367 15

ProfServ-Arbitrage Rebate 600 - - -

ProfServ-Dissemination Agent 1,000 1,000 - 1,000

ProfServ-Engineering 5,500 4,580 5,650 (1,070)

ProfServ-Legal Services 6,000 5,000 10,641 (5,641)

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 65,397 54,498 54,498 -

ProfServ-Trustee Fees 3,200 2,667 3,717 (1,050)

Auditing Services 3,423 3,423 3,400 23

Postage and Freight 400 332 809 (477)

Rental - Meeting Room 900 750 - 750

Insurance - General Liability 9,713 9,713 7,811 1,902

Printing and Binding 500 417 1,260 (843)

Legal Advertising 450 338 279 59

Miscellaneous Services 7,407 6,173 1,159 5,014

Misc-Assessmnt Collection Cost 4,985 4,985 4,845 140

Office Supplies 614 512 165 347

Annual District Filing Fee 175 175 175 -

Total Administration 116,723 99,945 99,576 369

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Period Ending July 31, 2019

Page 2

Page Number 16



COUNTRY GREENS

Community Development District General Fund

ANNUAL
ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Period Ending July 31, 2019

Field
ProfServ-Field Management 10,300 8,580 11,083 (2,503)

Contracts-Landscape 136,000 113,330 126,166 (12,836)

Utility - General 21,000 17,500 12,805 4,695

R&M-Common Area 3,057 2,548 10,058 (7,510)

Total Field 170,357 141,958 160,112 (18,154)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 287,080 241,903 259,688 (17,785)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
Over (under) expenditures (40,805) 3,205 (10,486) (13,691)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance (40,805) - - -

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (40,805) - - -

Net change in fund balance (40,805)$ 3,205$ (10,486)$ (13,691)$

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2018) 834,866 834,866 834,866

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 794,061$ 838,071$ 824,380$

Page 3

Page Number 17



COUNTRY GREENS

Community Development District Series 2016A Debt Service Fund

ANNUAL
ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

REVENUES

Interest - Investments 20$ 17$ 5,927$ 5,910$
Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 369,754 369,754 369,757 3
Special Assmnts- Discounts (14,790) (14,790) (14,084) 706

TOTAL REVENUES 354,984 354,981 361,600 6,619

EXPENDITURES

Administration
Misc-Assessmnt Collection Cost 7,395 7,395 7,114 281

Total Administration 7,395 7,395 7,114 281

Debt Service
Principal Prepayments - - 30,000 (30,000)
Principal Debt Retirement A-1 145,000 145,000 145,000 -
Principal Debt Retirement A-2 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
Interest Expense Series A-1 96,636 96,636 96,636 -
Interest Expense Series A-2 57,500 57,500 57,500 -

Total Debt Service 349,136 349,136 379,136 (30,000)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 356,531 356,531 386,250 (29,719)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
Over (under) expenditures (1,547) (1,550) (24,650) (23,100)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance (1,547) - - -

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (1,547) - - -

Net change in fund balance (1,547)$ (1,550)$ (24,650)$ (23,100)$

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2018) 280,268 280,268 280,268

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 278,721$ 278,718$ 255,618$

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Period Ending July 31, 2019

Page 4

Page Number 18



COUNTRY GREENS

Community Development District
Balance Sheet - All Funds

General Fund

►

►

►

Operating Reserves 71,850$

TOTAL 71,850$

Debt Service Fund

►

■ Prepaid Items - Trustee fees for period 10/1/19 - 2/29/20

■ Investments - Trust Accounts at US Bank for the Debt Service (See Cash & Investments Report for further
details).

■ Assigned to:

Assets

■ Accrued Expenses - June and July for landscaping

Notes to the Financial Statements

Assets

■ Cash and Investments- In order to maximize cash liquidity, the District has several CDs with varying maturities
and Money Market Accounts. (See Cash & Investments Report for further details).

July 31, 2019

Fund Balance

Liabilities

■ Accounts Payable - Invoices paid for July

■ Due To Other Funds - Tax Collector Commission Fees

Report Date: 8/9/2019 Page 5

Page Number 19



COUNTRY GREENS
Community Development District All Funds

Financial Overview / Highlights

►

►

►

Variance Analysis

Account Name

Annual
Adopted
Budget

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Expenditures

Administrative
ProfServ- Engineering 5,500 5,650 103%

Prof-Serv Legal Services 6,000$ 10,641 177%

Postage and Freight 400$ 809$ 202%

Printing and Binding 500$ 1,260$ 252%

Field
ProfServ-Field Management 10,300$ 11,083$ 108%

Contracts - Landscape 136,000$ 126,166$ 93%

R&M Common Area $ 3,057 $ 10,058 329%

April and May were expensed in July, as
well as accruals for June and July. There is
a delay in invoices being received for
shared expenses from Eagle Dunes HOA.

Monthly fees have increased beginning
May.

Irrigation pump repair and powerwashing of
PVC fence in May and June.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Non-Ad Valorem assessments are 100% collected. Compared to same time last year collections were also 100%
collected.

July 31, 2019

Total expenditures for July are approximately 91% compared to Annual Adopted Budget. Significant variances are
explained below.

Explanation

Includes printing and binding service
charges through July.

Engineering services invoiced in July for
services rendered from Feb to May 2019.

Delivery of agenda packages to board
through June.

Additional services provided in July for
drafting of agreement with Sorrento Pines,
LLC.

Other Miscellaneous Revenue - Payment of Agreement between District and Hanover Family Builders for access and
use of property.

Report Date: 8/9/2019 Page 6

Page Number 20



July 31, 2019

COUNTRY GREENS

Community Development District

Supporting Schedules

Page Number 21



COUNTRY GREENS
Community Development District All Funds

Net Discounts / (1) Gross Series 2016A
Date Check Amount (Penalties) Collection Amount General Debt Service
Received Number Received Amounts Costs Received Fund Fund

Assessments Levied FY 2019 618,999$ 249,245$ 369,754$
Allocation % 100% 40% 60%

11/28/18 825988 18,989$ 825$ 19,814$ -$ 19,814$
12/07/18 825989 11,929 516 12,446 12,446 -
12/07/18 826105 11,612 484 12,096 12,096 -
12/14/18 826348 166,205 6,927 173,132 173,132 -
12/14/18 826653 56,988 2,372 59,360 - 59,360
12/17/18 826104 19,900 829 20,729 - 20,729
12/17/18 826347 235,008 9,792 244,799 - 244,799
12/28/18 826654 34,025 1,417 35,442 35,442 -
01/11/19 826718 3,707 117 3,824 3,824
01/16/19 826717 5,341 168 5,509 - 5,509
02/08/19 827115 1,269 39 1,309 1,309
02/08/19 827114 1,740 54 1,793 1,793
02/25/19 11,495
02/28/19 827494 3,194 74 3,268 3,268
02/28/19 827493 4,831 115 4,945 4,945
03/29/19 827818 1,798 21 1,819 1,819
03/29/19 827817 2,611 31 2,642 2,642
04/18/19 828024 5,228 5,228 5,228
04/18/19 828025 3,090 3,090 3,090
05/28/19 828294 1,605 (44) 1,561 1,561
06/05/19 828293 2,779 (78) 2,702 2,702
06/05/19 50
06/07/19 828432 657 (19) 638 638
06/26/19 828431 1,291 (38) 1,253 1,253
06/28/19 828549 642 (19) 623 623
07/01/19 828548 1,010 (29) 981 980.55
07/16/19 414
TOTAL 595,450$ 23,555$ 11,959$ 619,005$ 249,248$ 369,757$

% COLLECTED 100% 100% 100%

TOTAL OUTSTANDING (6)$ (4)$ (3)$

Note (1) - Collection costs are paid directly to the Lake County Tax Collector twice a year.

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments - Lake County Tax Collector
(Monthly Collection Distributions)

For the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2019

ALLOCATION BY FUND

Report Date: 8/9/2019 Page 7

Page Number 22



COUNTRY GREENS

Community Development District
Balance Sheet - All Funds

Account Name Bank Name Investment Type Maturity Yield Balance

GENERAL FUND

Checking account - Operating (1) Wells Fargo Checking Account n/a 0.00% 20,563$

Checking account - Operating Valley National Bank Checking Account n/a 1.89% 32,729$

Subtotal 53,292$

Certificate of Deposits 6M Bank United CD 12/3/2019 2.42% 105,906$
Certificate of Deposits 6M Bank United CD 6/19/2020 2.25% 104,071$
Certificate of Deposits 6M Bank United CD 9/19/2019 2.20% 200,000$

Subtotal 409,977$

Certificate of Deposits 12M Bank United CD 8/28/2019 1.55% 153,726$
Subtotal 153,726$

Money Market Account Bank United MMA n/a 1.75% 229,880$
Subtotal 229,880$

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Series 2016 A-1 & A-2 Prepayment US Bank First American Govt. n/a 0.3% 3,414$

Series 2016 A-1 Reserve US Bank First American Govt. n/a 0.3% 120,534$
Series 2016 A-2 Reserve US Bank First American Govt. n/a 0.3% 53,250$

Series 2016 A-1 & A-2 Rev. US Bank First American Govt. n/a 0.3% 74,376$
Subtotal 251,575$

Total 1,098,449$

Note (1) - Closing Account in August.

July 31, 2019

Cash and Investment Report

Report Date: 8/9/2019 Page 8

Page Number 23



Posting
Date

Document
Type

Document
No. Description Amount

Cleared
Amount Difference

G/L Balance 20,563.17

Bank Account No. 3792

Statement No. 7/19B

Statement Date 7/31/2019

Statement Balance 20,563.17G/L Balance (LCY) 20,563.17

Difference 0.00

Ending G/L Balance 20,563.17

Subtotal 20,563.17

Outstanding Deposits 0.00

Negative Adjustments 0.00

Positive Adjustments 0.00

Subtotal 20,563.17

Outstanding Checks 0.00

Ending Balance 20,563.17

Differences 0.00

Wells Fargo - GF Checking (USE 9840)

Bank Reconciliation
Country Greens CDD

Page 9

Page Number 24



Posting
Date

Document
Type

Document
No. Description Amount

Cleared
Amount Difference

Outstanding Checks

7/24/2019 Payment 3017 FEDEX 41.83 0.00 41.83

7/31/2019 Payment 3019 INFRAMARK, LLC 7,403.61 0.00 7,403.61

Total Outstanding Checks...................................................................................................................... 7,445.44 7,445.44

G/L Balance 32,728.80

Bank Account No. 9840

Statement No. 07/19

Statement Date 7/31/2019

Statement Balance 40,174.24G/L Balance (LCY) 32,728.80

Difference 0.00

Ending G/L Balance 32,728.80

Subtotal 32,728.80

Outstanding Deposits 0.00

Negative Adjustments 0.00

Positive Adjustments 0.00

Subtotal 40,174.24

Outstanding Checks 7,445.44

Ending Balance 32,728.80

Differences 0.00

Valley National Bank - GF Checking New Account

Bank Reconciliation
Country Greens CDD

Page 10

Page Number 25



Jul 1, 2019 - Jul 31, 2019

COUNTRY GREENS

Community Development District

Check Register

Page Number 26



Fund

No.

Check /

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

GENERAL FUND - 001

001 1977 07/02/19 FEDEX 6-592-92713 JUNE POSTAGE Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $128.01

001 3011 07/09/19 NEESE IRRIGATION INC 5539 REPAIR IRR PUMP R&M-Common Area 546016-53901 $5,100.00

001 3012 07/10/19 FEDEX 6-601-03912 JUNE POSTAGE Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $14.00

001 3013 07/10/19 CLARK & ALBAUGH, LLP 16568 JUNE GEN COUNSEL ProfServ-Legal Services 531023-51401 $1,648.50

001 3014 07/16/19 EAGLE DUNES HOA INC 04-19 APRIL LANDSCAPE SVC Contracts-Landscape 534050-53901 $16,046.80

001 3014 07/16/19 EAGLE DUNES HOA INC 05-19 MAY LANDSCAPE SVCS Contracts-Landscape 534050-53901 $10,940.74

001 3015 07/18/19 DAVID JORDAN 071719 Misc-Assessmnt Collection Cost 549070-51301 $155.85

001 3016 07/22/19 DEWBERRY ENGINEERS INC 1708308 ENGG SVCS THRU JUNE 2019 ProfServ-Engineering 531013-51501 $470.00

001 3017 07/24/19 FEDEX 6-614-69052 JULY POSTAGE Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $41.83

001 3018 07/26/19 CONNOR F. GRAHAM 1817 WASH PVC FENCE R&M-Common Area 546016-53901 $2,900.00

001 3019 07/31/19 INFRAMARK, LLC 42867 JULY MGMT FEES ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 531027-51201 $5,449.75

001 3019 07/31/19 INFRAMARK, LLC 42867 JULY MGMT FEES Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $5.00

001 3019 07/31/19 INFRAMARK, LLC 42867 JULY MGMT FEES Printing and Binding 547001-51301 $224.20

001 3019 07/31/19 INFRAMARK, LLC 42867 JULY MGMT FEES Office Supplies 551002-51301 $33.00

001 3019 07/31/19 INFRAMARK, LLC 42867 JULY MGMT FEES ProfServ-Field Management 531016-53901 $1,691.66

001 DD179 07/03/19 SECO 061819 ACH 5/15-6/14/19 ELEC ACH Utility - General 543001-53901 $633.80

001 DD180 07/17/19 HOME DEPOT 062119-6336 ACH JUNE PURCHASES R&M-Common Area 546016-53901 $104.19

001 DD181 07/30/19 SECO 071519 ACH BILL PRD 6/11-7/11/19 Utility - General 543001-53901 $758.33

Fund Total $46,345.66

SERIES 2016A DEBT SERVICE FUND - 202

202 3015 07/18/19 DAVID JORDAN 071719 Misc-Assessmnt Collection Cost 549070-51301 $258.38

Fund Total $258.38

Total Checks Paid $46,604.04

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 7/1/2019 to 7/31/2019

Community Development District

COUNTRY GREENS

Page 11

Page Number 27



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4B. 
  

Page Number 28



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4Bi. 
  

Page Number 29



Country Greens CDD

Website Compliance And Accessibility   

Page Number 30



ADA Site Compliance is a leader in mitigating legal risks, auditing, and
the remediation of issues associated with websites and documents that
are not in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Our
team includes technical experts in coding, auditing, captioning, WCAG
standards, website & PDF compliance, accessibility, and usability.

Page Number 31



HEARING IMPAIRED

Anything That Can Be Heard 
(Videos, Sound Bites, Etc.) 
Must Have A Written 
Description.

VISUALLY IMPAIRED

Screen Reader Software Audibly
Reads The Visual Parts of Your
Website. Items Such As Pictures
And Buttons Must Have Text
Descriptions Added In The Code.

PHYSICALLY IMPAIRED

If Unable To Use A Mouse, 
Website Navigation Must 
Be Possible Using 100s Of 
Keyboard Shortcuts. 

Page Number 32



• Lawsuits are on the rise, and continuing to increase significantly.

• The Department of Justice has backed many lawsuits.

• It is extremely expensive to hire attorneys and pay associated fees.

• Related costs include: human capital, unwanted negative PR, stress
on your overall business, and reputational damage perpetuated via
viral posts on traditional and social media.

Page Number 33



ComplianceShield

A certificate is placed on your
website indicating that you have
a compliance plan in place. Acting
as a deterrent against surf-by
lawsuits; letting all website
visitors know that you are
actively working toward website
compliance, accessibility and
usability for all.

SiteAccessibility Policy

A compliance plan detailing
the efforts that your company
is making to ensure that your
website is accessible in
accordance with the Americans
with Disabilities Act. Providing
alternative contact information
for users who get “stuck”, and
become unable to navigate
the website.

ComplianceAudit Report

A detailed audit report indicating
which lines of code need to be
corrected, along with screen shots
and text descriptions of each.
Allowing those tasked with
making corrections to clearly
understand the accessibility issues
affecting your site and the steps
needed to correct them.

Page Number 34



A byproduct of our website auditing is that we find things that
are “broken” on your website. Tweaking and correcting with ADA
accessibility in mind will work simultaneously to increase the
overall usability of your site.

• Videos That Are Unable To Be Loaded
• Images, Links And Buttons Missing Alt-Tags
• Broken Links 

Correcting issues will reduce user frustration, providing a positive
effect on your websites search engine optimization and rankings.

Page Number 35



Without Human Expert Auditing, your website and PDFs 
WILL NOT be compliant, accessible, and usable. 

Auditing correctly the first time saves you time and money.

Page Number 36



Our teams will work together toward the goal of achieving accessibility,
usability, and compliance for your website. Proper implementation of
strategies and timelines will allow us to achieve all.

Utilizing technology driven and human expert auditing will provide WCAG
level reporting that will be the basis for correcting the issues. Ongoing
support will be provided to the team at Country Greens CDDvia video
conferencing, screen sharing, email, and telephone.

ADA Site Compliance will play an active role during your remediation
process. Our mutual goal is for the team at Country Greens CDDto acquire
a high level of expertise and understanding of website accessibility and
compliance. Enabling them to properly design, develop, and code future
projects; thereby mitigating compliance issues prior to updates going live.

Page Number 37



Our CTO, Scott Rubenstein, will oversee the auditing process of your website.
Scott will evaluate how updates are currently implemented and suggest best
practices and improvements for future compliance control and oversight. Sharing
his expertise with your team, and providing a valuable technical resource, Scott
will ensure that your remediation process is streamlined for success.

Scott Rubenstein has been a professional application developer and designer for more than 20 years. Utilizing his technical skills,
along with his entrepreneurial goals, he has been partnered in multiple highly successful businesses. He has received praise and
accolades throughout his career for his out-of-the-box thinking and creativity in his solutions. Scott is a survivor of the terrorist
attacks of 9/11 and was fortunate to escape tower 2 of the World Trade Center prior to its collapse. He returned to New York City
soon after, playing an integral role in restoring critical systems. He subsequently became an expert in building and securing websites
across a multitude of industries. Scott has a passion, and a high level of expertise, for understanding the coding languages utilized in
building and developing website, and how proper coding can enable websites to be compliant, accessible, and usable by all.

Page Number 38



Our team of experts will support you throughout the process to ensure success.

FREE online tools, such as Wave, WILL NOT make your website compliant with the WCAG.
These tools find approximately 20% of accessibility issues. Our technological auditing tool finds approximately 30% of accessibility errors.

Human Expert Auditing MUST be performed to make your website compliant. 
Human Expert Auditing uncovers approximately 70% - 80% of accessibility issues. 

Page Number 39



• Average Costs Can Easily Exceed Six Figures

• 320% Increase In ADA Website Lawsuits Filed In Recent Years

• A Significant Increase in Lawsuits is Expected Moving Forward 

Page Number 40



Page Number 41



This proposal is for the Country Greens CDD website, which our development and audit team will
perform the scope of services outlined below. ADA Site Compliance is a consultancy which provides
specific services for the client. Any services outside of the scope below, or separate sites or templates,
will require additional evaluations and proposals. A detailed Scope of Work will be provided, and agreed
upon, prior to the start of the project.

Human Expert Auditing

WCAG Standards
Expert level human auditing on the agreed upon pages. 
Auditing performed utilizing screen reader software and keyboard shortcuts. 
Detailed reports provided for each round. 

Technological Auditing

WCAG Standards
Technological auditing of the agreed upon pages.
Detailed Reports

Accessibility Policies and Compliance Shields

Indication to all website visitors that compliance, accessibility, and usability are a priority.
Provides contact information (phone and/or email) for users who find inaccessible areas of the website.

PDF Auditing and Remediation

PDFs remediated by human experts providing the highest level of accuracy. 

Date: April 29, 2019
Re: Compliance Remediation of the Country Greens CDD Website

Page Number 42



PDFs - Fully Remediated Documents      

❑ $3.95 Per Page (minimum $100) - Human Expert Auditing and Remediation

❑ $9,412 2,381 Pages on Current Website - Audited by Human Experts, Remediated, and Posted to the New Website

Website Redeveloped and Redesigned for Compliance and Accessibility

❑ $2,880     Website Auditing and Remediation – Performed by Human Experts in Design and Coding

Annually $1,280 - Quarterly Technologic Auditing, Customized Accessibility Policy, 

Compliance Shield, Consulting, Theme Updates and Assistance with New Data Compliance

The annual fee is waived for year 1

Country Greens CDD Representative ADA Site Compliance Representative

By: __________________________ By: __________________________

Name: _______________________ Name: _______________________

Its: __________________________ Its: __________________________

Date: ________________________ Date: ________________________

Page Number 43



Contact Information 

ADA Site Compliance LLC 

Scott Trachtenberg, Chief Executive Officer

(561) 258-9515 Direct

(561) 258-9300 Office

scott@adaSiteCompliance.com

adaSiteCompliance.com 

“If you think compliance is expensive, 
try non-compliance.”

Former Deputy U.S. Attorney General Paul McNulty

Page Number 44



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4Bii. 
  

Page Number 45



Keeping your community informed.  
And you compliant.

Country Greens Community Development District
 

Proposal date: 2019-06-21 

Proposal ID:  YEMBH-TSKSI-NX4UF-PVHBA

 

Pricing....................................................................................2

Services..................................................................................3-5

FAQs.........................................................................................6

Statement of work.........................................................7-8

Terms and conditions..................................................9-12

 

 

Page Number 46



Pricing

Effective date: 2019-06-21                                

Implementation Quantity Subtotal 

On-boarding of ADA Compliant Website and  
Remediation of Historical Documents 
 

Migration website pages and present on a staged  
website for approval
Initial PDF Accessibility Compliance Service
for 1500 pages of remediation

 

1 $2,075.00 

Annual ongoing services  Quantity  Subtotal 

Website services 
 

Hosting, support and training for users
Website management tools to make updates
Secure certification (https)
Monthly accessibility site reporting, monitoring and
error corrections
 

1 615.00

Ongoing PDF Accessibility Compliance Service 
 

Remediation of all PDFs stored on your website
Remediation of up to 750 PDF pages
Dashboard for reporting and managing all PDFs
48-hour turnaround for fixes for board agendas
PDF manager dashboard

 

750* $937.50 

Social Media Manager  Included 

*Maximum PDF pages per 12 month period 
 
 

Total: $3,627.50

Page Number 47



!""#$%&'()*+'+",$-"%.,'/%-'#+)#"+.(')0%"+,'$%1)+2"-'$,'/'
3$&'+",#)%,$3$4$.('5')%"'.6/.'+"7*$+",'8)%,./%.'-$4$&"%8"9'
:./($%&'8*++"%.'0$.6'.6"'4/0,'.6/.'/##4('.)'#*34$8'/88",,'.)'
-$,.+$8.'+"8)+-,;'+"#)+.,'/%-').6"+'4"&/4'+"7*$+"2"%.,'
#+","%.,'/'3$&'86/44"%&"'1)+'2/%('<=='8)22*%$.$",9

>6"%'$.'8)2",'.)'()*+'0"3,$."'/%-'/44'.6"'0"3?3/,"-'
-)8*2"%.,'()*'/+"'+"7*$+"-'.)'#*34$,6;'.6"('/44'%""-'.)'3"'
1*44('/88",,$34"9'@4)+$-/',./.*.",'/%-'1"-"+/4'4/0,'+"7*$+"'
()*'/%-'"A"+(',#"8$/4'-$,.+$8.'3"'8)2#4$/%.'0$.6'B=B'
CB2"+$8/%,'0$.6'=$,/3$4$.$",'B8.D'/%-'/88",,$3$4$.('+"&*4/.$)%,9

!""#$%&'$(')**')++",,$-*"'.')%/'*"&)*

</2#*,':*$."'#+)A$-",'.6"'.)./4'/88",,$3$4$.(',)4*.$)%'.)'
E""#'/44'()*+'0"3'8)22*%$8/.$)%,'/%-'0"3'-)8*2"%.,'
)%'.6"'+$&6.',$-"')1'.6","'4/0,'5',#"8$F8/44('86/#."+,'GHI'
/%-'JHJ')1'.6"'@4)+$-/':./.*.",9

Accountable, compliant
communications

Easy-to-update website,
hosting and support

Worry-free ADA-compliance,
auditing and full reporting

Meets Florida statutes
and federal laws

Save CDD board time
and money

Designed for districts

WEBSITE AND ACCESSIBILITY SOLUTION
Page Number 48



<)22*%$8/.$)%'$,'E"('.)',*88",,'$%'/%(')+&/%$K/.$)%;'/%-'
()*+'8)22*%$.('-"A"4)#2"%.'-$,.+$8.'$,'%)'"L8"#.$)%9'B.'
</2#*,':*$.";'0"'*%-"+,./%-'.6"'*%$7*"'8)22*%$8/.$)%'
%""-,')1'<==,'/%-'8+"/."'/'8)2#+"6"%,$A"'0"3,$."'.6/.',"+A",'
/,'()*+'8)22*%$8/.$)%'6*39

M)*+'#+)#"+.(')0%"+,'/%-'+",$-"%.,'0$44'8)2"'.)'-"#"%-')%'
.6"'0"/4.6')1'$%1)+2/.$)%'/.'.6"$+'F%&"+.$#,9'B%-'()*+'3)/+-'
2"23"+,;'2/%/&"2"%.'."/2'/%-',./N'0$44'8)2"'.)'+"4(')%'.6"'
+)4"'()*+'0"3,$."',"+A",'$%',.+"/24$%$%&'.6"'8+$.$8/4'8)22*%$?
8/.$)%,'1*%8.$)%,'()*O+"'+"7*$+"-'3('4/0'.)'#+)A$-"9'

0123'/$,(3$+('4"-,$("'5")(23",6

' P+)1",,$)%/4'0"3,$."'-",$&%
' Q/,(?.)?*,"'.))4,'.)'2/E"'*#-/.",
' R)./4'-)8*2"%.'2/%/&"2"%.
' :*##)+.'/%-'.+/$%$%&'1)+'*,"+,
' </4"%-/+')1'"A"%.,
' <4*36)*,"'/%-'+"%./4',86"-*4$%&
' S"".$%&'%).$8",'/%-'2$%*.",

Accessibility Compliance
with Campus Suite

Keeping your
community informed 
and compliant.

A website with all the features
your district needs. 

WEBSITE AND ACCESSIBILITY SOLUTION

Accessibility Compliance
with Campus Suite
Accessibility Compliance
with Campus Suite

>"'./E"')%'.6"'+",#)%,$3$4$.(')1'2/E$%&'/%-'E""#$%&'()*+'
0"3,$."'1*44('/88",,$34"'.)'#")#4"'0$.6'-$,/3$4$.$",9'>"'E%)0'
06/.O,'/.',./E"'$1'()*+'0"3,$."'$,'%).'B=B?8)2#4$/%.;',)'0"'
6/%-4"'$.'/44'5'2)%$.)+$%&;'+"#)+.$%&;'/%-'+"2"-$/.$)%9

7"',()%/'-"8$%/'123',")*'15')##319)*:
Q/86'#/&"')1'()*+'0"3,$."'0$44'6/A"')*+')T8$/4'8"+.$F8/.$)%')1'/'
0"3,$."'.6/.'2"".,'.6"'+"7*$+"-'/88",,$3$4$.(',./%-/+-,9''

;)$%()$%'<=<'+1>#*$)%+"6

' >"3,$."'/%-'-)8*2"%.,'2"".
' ><BU'J9G'+"7*$+"2"%.,
' S)%.64('/88",,$3$4$.(',8/%%$%&
' /*-$.,'/%-'+"#)+.$%&
' V%?6)*,"'."/2'.6/.'FL",'/44')1'
' .6"'/88",,$3$4$.('"++)+,
' W%?-"2/%-'P=@'+"2"-$/.$)%
' CXH?6)*+'.*+%/+)*%-D

We'll handle all your website
and document accessibility. 

Page Number 49



WEBSITE AND ACCESSIBILITY SOLUTION

A trusted name for compliance.
@)+')A"+'GY'("/+,;'</2#*,':*$."'6/,'3*$4.'/'+"#*./.$)%'6"4#$%&'#*34$8',86))4,'
/8+),,'.6"'8)*%.+('"4$2$%/."'8)22*%$8/.$)%'3/++$"+,'/%-'$2#+)A"',86))4'
8)22*%$.('"%&/&"2"%.9'>"'-)'$.'3('8+"/.$%&'"/,(?.)?*,";'/N)+-/34('#+$8"-'
0"3,$.",'1"/.*+$%&'#+)1",,$)%/4'-",$&%;'*%2/.86"-'8*,.)2"+',"+A$8";'/%-'
#/A$%&'/'4"/-"+,6$#'+)4"'$%'0"3,$."'/88",,$3$4$.(9

>"OA"'6"4#"-'-$,.+$8.,'3*$4-'0"3'/88",,$3$4$.('#)4$8$",'/%-'0"3,$.",;'/%-'"A"%'
8+"/."-'8)%.$%&"%8('#4/%,'1)+'+",#)%-$%&'.)'0"3'$,,*",'/%-'8)2#4/$%.,'1+)2'
.6"'W<Z'C[9:9'WT8"'1)+'<$A$4'Z$&6.,D9'R6","'$%84*-"'-"./$4"-'+",)4*.$)%'
#4/%,'06"%'84$"%.,'%""-'.)'+",#)%-'.)'/A)$-'F%",'/%-'.6"'%"&/.$A"'#*34$8$.('
.6/.',)2".$2",',*++)*%-,'%)%?8)2#4$/%8"9

</2#*,':*$."'6/,'/4,)'#$)%""+"-'"-*8/.$%&'#*34$8'$%,.$.*.$)%,'/3)*.'0"3,$."'
/88",,$3$4$.('3('",./34$,6$%&'.6"'>"3,$."'B88",,$3$4$.('Q-*8/.$)%'<"%."+;'/'
A/4*/34"'+",)*+8"'1)+'0"3,$."'/-2$%$,.+/.)+,99

Campus Suite Academy
Website Accessibility Center www.campussuite.com/accessibility-center

Page Number 50



Frequently asked questions 
 
For PDF service, what is the price per page? 

Pricing can range based on the volume of PDFs you have on your website and if it is part of the 

initial remediation or the on-demand service. The price range is between $1.05 per page to $1.75 

per page. 

 

What does the PDF scan and remediation process look like? 

You’ll upload your documents to the dashboard. We are notified and begin setting up the scan. 

After the fixes are made, we put the documents back onto the dashboard and you are notified.  You 

then put them back to the appropriate location on your website. 

 

What does the ADA managed service process for our website look like? 

Our team performs monthly scans of your site utilizing software. Our team then goes through the 

results and fixes the content-related errors by hand.  A report is produced for your records and 

uploaded to your ADA dashboard. Any outlying issues we may encounter, you will be notified until 

the issue is resolved. 

 

How long does it take? 

For non-urgent doc remediation, we can scan and fix up to 2000 pages per week.  We also have 

urgent services available for an additional fee with a turnaround time of 48 hours. 

 

What standards do you follow for ADA? 

We follow WCAG AA 2.1 guidelines 

 

Are there any hidden fees? 

No. 

 

How long does it take to build the website? 

It depends upon your responsiveness, but generally only a couple of weeks. 

 

Can we change the design of our website? 

Our themes are customizable to address your preferences.  There are some guardrails in place to 

help ensure ADA compliance to a degree, but you can select colors, images, etc… 

 

Do your sites offer a calendar? 

Yes.  This site can be utilized in many different ways.  One of which is a calendar to help with your 

clubhouse availability/rental schedule. 

 

 

Page Number 51



Statement of work

1. On-boarding of ADA Compliant Website and Remediation of Historical Documents. Contractor will
deliver a functional, responsive, working ADA compliant website that can display content submitted to the
Contractor by the District. At a minimum, the website and the documents on the website will:

1. Comply with the guidelines provided by Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.1, as amended and/or
replaced by new releases from time to time (“WCAG”);

2. Contain a website accessibility policy that includes: a commitment to accessibility for persons with
disabilities, the accessibility standard used and applied to the website (at a minimum WCAG), and
contact information of the District Manager or their designee (email and phone number) in case users
encounter any problems;

3. Display an ADA compliance shield, seal, or certification;
4. Provide options to create a CDD-branded design (colors, logo, etc…)
5. Be accessible on modern versions of Internet Explorer, Edge, Mozilla, Safari, and Chrome web

browsers and be “mobile friendly” and offer a “mobile version” of the sites content for access from
tablets or smart phones.

6. Be free of any commercial advertising;
7. Be free of any known  spyware, virus, or malware;
8. Secure certification (https)
9. Secure cloud hosting with fail-overs

10. Allow for data backups, and record retention as required by law;  
11. Allow for the display a calendar, reservation request form, and newsletter;
12. Creation of a dashboard for the District to upload and remove content, manage all documents, manage

document remediation, and review reports generated by the Contractor; and
13. Remediate 1500 pages identified by the District for the new website in an ADA compliant format.*

2. Domain Fee. The Contractor shall pay the annual fee for the domain name of the District’s website.
3. Maintenance and Management of the Website.

1. Contractor will manage and maintain the website;
2. Remediate new documents (a not to exceed 750 pages per year) provided by the District Manager in

an ADA compliant format;*
1. For Agenda Packages, the Contractor shall turn around the documents within 2 business days

3. District shall be responsible for uploading the ADA compliant documents onto the website. Contractor
shall ensure that the District only has the ability to upload or remove documents on the website and
cannot alter any other aspect of the website;

4. Contractor will store all District data, including files, text and parameters; data will be backed-up on a
separate storage system at regular intervals; and

5. The ADA compliant website will be on-line at all times unless maintenance or upgrades require it to
be unavailable. When maintenance or upgrades require the website to be unavailable, Contractor will

Page Number 52



provide the District with reasonable advance notice in writing.
4. Monthly Auditing and Remediation Services.

1. Every month Contractor will comprehensively audit the website’s compliance with (1) WCAG and (2)
any applicable laws, rules, and regulations (including, the Department of Justice);

2. After the audit, Contractor will remediate any web accessibility deficiencies of the website or content
on the website; and

3. The Contractor will provide a written report to the District that summarizes the audit and any
remediations made.

5. Support Services. 
Contractor will supply telephone and/or email support to the District on a reasonable and necessary basis to
within business hours – Monday to Friday 9 am to 6 pm EST, exclusive of holidays. The Contractor will
provide a listing of detailed hours, holidays, and service availability on their website, and reserves the right
to modify the times technical support is available.

 
*If certain PDFs are not able to be fully remediated, Contractor shall work with the District to create a summary
of the content in the PDF and provide contact information if anyone needs reasonable accommodations to access
the full content within that PDF.

Page Number 53



Website Creation and Management Agreement 

This Website Creation and Management Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of 2019-06-21,
between the Country Greens Community Development District, whose mailing address is 313 Campus Street,
Celebration, FL 34747 (the “District”) and Innersync Studio, LLC., an Ohio limited liability company (d/b/a
Campus Suite), whose mailing address is 752 Dunwoodie Dr., Cincinnati, Ohio 45230 (the “Contractor”). 
 
Background Information:
 
The District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to the Uniform Community
Development District Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. The District is required to have a
website and desires to have a website created, regularly updated, managed, inspected, and remediated to ensure
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (the “ADA”). The Contractor has the technical expertise to
provide the above-mentioned services. The District desires to retain the Contractor to provide services as
described in this Agreement.
 
Operative Provisions:
 

1. Incorporation of Background Information. The background information stated above is true and correct
and by this reference is incorporated as a material part of this Agreement. 
 
2. Scope of Services. The Contractor will perform all work, including all labor, equipment, and supervision
necessary to perform the services described in the “Statement of Work” attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
3. Term and Renewal. The initial term of this Agreement will be for one year from the date of this
Agreement. At the end of the initial term, this Agreement will automatically renew for subsequent one-year
terms pursuant to the same price and contract provisions as the initial term, until terminated by either party
pursuant to the termination provisions below.  

 
4. Termination. 
 

a. Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause, with an effective termination date of the next
scheduled renewal date, by providing at least thirty (30) days written (letter, facsimile, email) notice to the
other party prior to the next renewal date.
 
b. Either party may terminate this Agreement with cause for material breach provided, however, that the
terminating party has given the other party at least thirty (30) days written (letter, facsimile, email) of, and
the opportunity to cure the breach. 

Page Number 54



 
c. Upon termination of this Agreement:

 
i. The Contractor will be entitled to payment for all work and/or services rendered up until the
effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District may have
against the Contractor. If any deposit or advanced payments exceeds these costs, Contractor will
refund the appropriate amount to the District. 
ii. The Contractor will provide the District or its designee with all domain names, authorizations,
usernames, passwords, and content (including remediated content) in the format in which it was stored
on the server, at a cost not to exceed $50 to the District.   
iii. The Contractor will be permitted to remove its name and ADA compliance shield, seal, or
certificate from the website on the effective date of the termination. 
iv. If the Contractor was using certain software (including content management software) that is
proprietary and was licensed to the District during the term of the Agreement, then the Contractor shall
coordinate with the District as to the end of the license or simply create a simple splash page of the
District with information on the transition to a new website.

 
5. Compensation and Prompt Payment.
 

a. Upon execution of this Agreement, the District agrees to pay Contractor for a one-time payment of
$2,075.00 for the Onboarding of ADA Compliant Website and Remediation of Historical Documents.
 
b. Starting on October 1, 2019 the District agrees to compensate the Contractor $1,515.00 for Domain
Fee, Maintenance and Management of the Website, Monthly Auditing and Remediation Services, and
Support Services as described in the Statement of Work as described in the Statement of Work. The
District shall make such payments in advance of the services to be provided. Contractor will provide the
District with an invoice on a annual basis for work to be performed. The District will pay Contractor
within 15 days of receipt of the invoice.

 
6. Additional Work. If the District should desire additional work or services, the Contractor agrees to
negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional work or services. Upon successful negotiations, the
parties will agree in writing to an addendum (for changes to the regular services) or work authorization order
(for all other services). The Contractor will be compensated for such agreed additional work or services based
upon a payment amount acceptable to the parties and agreed to in writing. 
 
7. Ownership of Website, Domain Name, and Content. The District will be the owner of the website,
domain name, and all content (including remediated content provided by the Contractor) on the website. 
 

Page Number 55



8. No Infringement of Intellectual Property. Contractor warrants and represents that neither the Statement
of Work nor any product or services provided by Contractor will infringe, misappropriate, or otherwise
violate the intellectual property rights of any third-party. Contractor shall take all steps to ensure that the
District has no access to confidential software or data that is proprietary (whether it’s the Contractor’s or
another provider’s through a license agreement). 
 
9. Promotion. The District permits Contractor to identify the District as a customer of Contractor in
Contractor’s marketing materials (including using the District’s name and logo for such limited purposes).  
 
10. Warranty. The Contractor warrants that the work: (a) will conform to the requirements of the Statement
of Work, (b) will be performed in a prompt, diligent, good, safe and workmanlike manner in accordance with
all laws, industry standards, and all applicable ADA and WCAG regulations, and (c) will be performed
without defects in workmanship or in code. To the extent that any defects are found and reported to the
Contractor, the Contractor shall correct such defects within thirty (30) days.
 
11. Relationship Between the Parties. It is understood that the Contractor is an independent contractor and
will perform the services contemplated under this Agreement.  As an independent contractor, nothing in this
Agreement will be deemed to create a partnership, joint venture, or employer-employee relationship between
the Contractor and the District. The Contractor will not have the right to make any contract or commitments
for, or on behalf of, the District without the prior written approval of the District. The Contractor assumes full
responsibility for the payment and reporting of all local, state, and federal taxes and other contributions
imposed or required of the Contractor during the performance of services to the District.
 
12. Compliance with Governmental Regulations. The Contractor will comply with necessary economic,
operational, safety, insurance, and other compliance requirements imposed by federal, state, county,
municipal or regulatory bodies, relating to the contemplated operations and services hereunder. The
Contractor warrants and represents the Contractor is currently in compliance with and will hereafter comply
with all federal, state and local laws and ordinances relating in any way to the services provided hereunder.
Contractor is solely responsible for complying with all applicable laws pertaining to website accessibility,
including but not limited to the ADA and those certain WCAG standards, and other web accessibility
guidelines as amended from time to time.
 
13. Insurance. Contractor will, at its own expense, maintain commercial general liability insurance coverage
of no less than $1,000,000 for the duration of the term of this Agreement and for any renewals of the term, as
mutually agreed upon by the parties, which names the District, its officers, agents, staff, and employees as an
additional insured.  The Contractor will deliver to the District proof of insurance referred to herein or a
certificate evidencing the coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement. Such insurance policy may not be
canceled without a thirty-day written notice to the District. The Contractor will maintain Workers

Page Number 56



Compensation insurance as required by law. 
 
14. Limitation of Liability. Either party’s total liability under this Agreement, regardless of cause or theory
of recovery, will not exceed the total amount of fees paid by the District to the Contractor during the twelve-
month period immediately preceding the occurrence or act or omission giving rise to any claim. Contractor
shall not be liable for ADA compliance of any content posted by the District without first being remediated
by the Contractor. 
 
15. Indemnification. Contractor agrees to, subject to the limitation of liability described above, indemnify,
defend and hold the District and its supervisors, officers, managers, agents and employees harmless from any
and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by any person, corporation or other entity for injuries or
damage of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, the work to be performed by Contractor,
including litigation or any appellate proceedings with respect thereto. Contractor further agrees that nothing
herein will constitute or be construed as a waiver of the Districts limitations on liability contained in Section
768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute or law.  Any subcontractor retained by the Contractor will
acknowledge the same in writing. Obligations under this section will include the payment of all settlements,
judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, arbitration
and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorney fees, and paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of court,
on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings) as ordered.
 
16. Conditions Precedent Prior to Any Litigation. In the event that either party is dissatisfied with the
other party and as a condition precedent prior to commencing any litigation, such party shall communicate in
writing to the other party with their specific concerns. The parties shall make a good faith effort toward the
resolution of any such issues. If the parties are not able to reach a mutually acceptable solution, then either
party may request arbitration at their own expense.  If such arbitration is requested, it shall be held within
sixty (60) days of such request.
 
17. Remedies in the Event of Default. Subject to the limitation of liability described above, a default by
either party under this Agreement will entitle the other to all remedies available at law or in equity, which
may include, but not be limited to, the right of actual damages and/or specific performance.  Nothing
contained in this Agreement will limit or impair the District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a
third-party to this Agreement. 
 
18. Controlling Law. This Agreement is governed under the laws of the State of Florida with venue in the
county the District is located in.
 
19. Enforcement of Agreement. Only after satisfying the conditions precedent prior to any litigation above,
in the event it becomes necessary for either party to institute legal proceedings in order to enforce the terms

Page Number 57



of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to all costs, including reasonable attorney’s fees at
both trial and appellate levels against the non-prevailing party, with a not to exceed limit of the total amount
of fees paid by the District to the Contractor during the twelve-month period immediately preceding the
occurrence or act or omission giving rise to any claim.
 
20. Public Records.  Contractor acknowledges the District is a special purpose unit of local government in
the State of Florida, and that all documents of any kind provided to or in possession of Contractor in
connection with this Agreement are subject to Florida’s public records laws, pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida
Statutes. As required under Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, Contractor will (a) keep and maintain public
records that would ordinarily and necessarily be required by the District in order to perform the Service
Provided, b) provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions that the
District would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost of reproduction permitted by
law, (c) ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law, and (d) meet all requirements for
retaining public records and transfer, at no cost to the District, all public records in possession of the
Contractor upon termination of this Agreement, and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must
be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the
District.  Upon receipt by Contractor of any request for copies of public records, Contractor will immediately
notify the District of such request.  Failure of Contractor to comply with public records laws to the extent
required by statute may result in immediate termination of the Agreement.

 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119,
FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT
________________________________, OR BY EMAIL AT ________________________, OR BY
REGULAR MAIL AT ___________________________.
 

21. Scrutinized Companies. Pursuant to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, Contractor represents that in
entering into this Agreement, the Contractor has not been designated as a “scrutinized company” under the
statute and, in the event that the Contractor is designated as a “scrutinized company”, the Contractor will
immediately notify the District whereupon this Agreement may be terminated by the District. 
 
22. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this
Agreement will remain in full force and effect. 
 
23. Assignment. This Agreement is not transferrable or assignable by either party without the written
approval of both parties. 

Page Number 58



 
24. Amendment. This Agreement may not be altered, changed or amended, except by an instrument in
writing, signed by both parties hereto. 
 
25. Arm’s Length Transaction. This Agreement has been negotiated fully between the District and the
Contractor as an arm's length transaction.  In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any
provision of this Agreement, the parties are each deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language,
and any doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against any party. 
 
26. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when
executed and delivered will be an original; however, all such counterparts together will constitute, but one
and the same instrument.
 
27. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and neither party is to rely upon any
oral representations made by the other party, except as set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement
supersedes and subsumes any prior agreements. To the extent that any provisions of this Agreement conflict
with the provisions in any exhibit, the provisions in this Agreement controls over provisions in any exhibit. 

   

Innersync Studio, LLC.
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
 
Steve Williams                                    Date
VP of Marketing

Country Greens
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________
 
Print name                                       Date
 
____________________________________

Page Number 59



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4Biii. 
  

Page Number 60



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 1 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

Proposal For 

Country Greens CDD  

(URL: https://www.countrygreenscdd.org)   Website Type:  Small 

 Website Accessibility for People with Disabilities as per Nondiscrimination 
requirements of Title II of the American Disabilities Act (ADA) & WCAG 

Date Version# Comments Author 

August 13, 2018 1.0 Updated “The Law, ADA and WCAG” section details VB Joshi, Kristen T 

January 10th, 2019 2.0 Updated conversion and support costs based on discussed scope VB Joshi 

February 25, 2019 2.2 Updated fee-simple pricing and human audit seal VB Joshi 

March 21, 2019 2.3 Added quarterly audit as per insurance requirement VB Joshi 

March 28, 2019 2.4 Updated Annual Maintenance price for ADA support only VB Joshi 

May 7, 2019 2.5 Updated for CDD specific info after conversing with CDD Manager VB Joshi 

May 20, 2019 2.6 Added Human Audit Details VB Joshi 

June 9, 2019 2.7 Added Hosting and Backup to Maintenance VB Joshi  

    

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Your website gets 2 Compliance Seals 
VGlobalTech’s Technical Compliance Seal & Human Audit Compliance Seal* 

(* Human Audit Contract required. Please email contact@vglobaltech.com for audit proposal) 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

VGlobalTech is the ADA, WCAG Compliance Expert, with over 100 ADA & WCAG compliant 
websites created (….and counting) to-date! We have partnered with a non-profit agency to 

conduct Human Audit and Certification Seal.  
Visit https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ for details. 

 

Page Number 61

https://www.countrygreenscdd.org/
mailto:contact@vglobaltech.com
https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 2 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COPYRIGHT ©: This proposal and the contents within this document are solely 
created by VGlobalTech team for its customers and cannot be reproduced, copied, 

modified or distributed (including forwarding to other customers, competitors, 
web designers etc.) without the written consent of VGlobalTech. VGlobalTech 

company holds Intellectual Property details along with company software details 
that must not be shared with others without the written permission of the 

company. The proposal and software details are customized for the requesting 
customer and cannot be applied to any other customer / asset / solution. This 

document does not apply to a case if it is not exclusively sent to you by 
VGlobalTech upon request. 

Any violations are punishable under the law and shall be prosecuted.  

  

Page Number 62



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 3 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

 

Table of Contents 

 

1.0 The Law .......................................................................................................................................................... 4 

2.0 ADA & WCAG Compliance – Introduction ........................................................................................ 6 

2.1 Common Problems and Solutions in Website Accessibility? ................................................ 7 

2.1.1 Problem: Images Without Text Equivalents ........................................................................... 7 

2.1.2 Problem: Documents Are Not Posted In an Accessible Format ....................................... 7 

2.1.3 Problem: Specifying Colors and Font Sizes ............................................................................. 7 

2.1.4 Problem: Videos and Other Multimedia Lack Accessible Features ................................ 7 

2.1.5 Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) ..................................................................... 8 

3.0 Pricing .......................................................................................................................................................... 10 

3.1 Existing Website Remediation / New Website Build: .......................................................... 10 

3.2 ADA Compliance Monthly Maintenance and Hosting ........................................................... 11 

3.3 Quarterly Technical and Human Audit ....................................................................................... 12 

 ................................................................................................................................................................................ 12 

4.0 Proposal Acceptance:............................................................................................................................. 14 

5.0 References: ................................................................................................................................................ 15 

 

 

  

Page Number 63



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 4 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

1.0 The Law 
 

Source: http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-
0199/0189/Sections/0189.069.html 

189.069 Special districts; required reporting of information; web-based public access. — 

(1) Beginning on October 1, 2015, or by the end of the first full fiscal year after its creation, 
each special district shall maintain an official website containing the information required by this 
section. Each special district shall submit its official website address to the department. 

(a) Each independent special district shall maintain a separate website. 

(b) Each dependent special district shall be prominently displayed on the home page of the 
website of the local general-purpose government upon which it is dependent with a hyperlink to 
such webpages as are necessary to provide the information required by this section. A 
dependent special district may maintain a separate website providing the information required 
by this section. 

(2)(a) A special district shall post the following information, at a minimum, on the district’s 
official website: 

1. The full legal name of the special district. 

2. The public purpose of the special district. 

3. The name, official address, official e-mail address, and, if applicable, term and appointing 
authority for each member of the governing body of the special district. 

4. The fiscal year of the special district. 

5. The full text of the special district’s charter, the date of establishment, the establishing 
entity, and the statute or statutes under which the special district operates, if different from the 
statute or statutes under which the special district was established. Community development 
districts may reference chapter 190 as the uniform charter but must include information relating 
to any grant of special powers. 

6. The mailing address, e-mail address, telephone number, and website uniform resource 
locator of the special district. 

7. A description of the boundaries or service area of, and the services provided by, the special 
district. 

8. A listing of all taxes, fees, assessments, or charges imposed and collected by the special 
district, including the rates or amounts for the fiscal year and the statutory authority for the levy 

Page Number 64

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0189/Sections/0189.069.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0189/Sections/0189.069.html


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 5 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

of the tax, fee, assessment, or charge. For purposes of this subparagraph, charges do not include 
patient charges by a hospital or other health care provider. 

9. The primary contact information for the special district for purposes of communication from 
the department. 

10. A code of ethics adopted by the special district, if applicable, and a hyperlink to generally 
applicable ethics provisions. 

11. The budget of the special district and any amendments thereto in accordance with 
s.189.016. 

12. The final, complete audit report for the most recent completed fiscal year and audit 
reports required by law or authorized by the governing body of the special district. 

13. A listing of its regularly scheduled public meetings as required by s. 189.015(1). 

14. The public facilities report, if applicable. 

15. The link to the Department of Financial Services’ website as set forth in s. 218.32(1)(g). 

16. At least 7 days before each meeting or workshop, the agenda of the event, along with any 
meeting materials available in an electronic format, excluding confidential and exempt 
information. The information must remain on the website for at least 1 year after the event. 

(b) The department’s website list of special districts in the state required under s. 189.061shall 
include a link for each special district that provides web-based access to the public for all 
information and documentation required for submission to the department pursuant to 
subsection  

 

 

 

  

Page Number 65

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0189/Sections/0189.016.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0189/Sections/0189.015.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0200-0299/0218/Sections/0218.32.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0189/Sections/0189.061.html


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 6 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

2.0 ADA & WCAG Compliance – Introduction 
 

Every individual must have equal access to information whether it is in person service or online. 
This is a general agreement and understanding of access.  

The Internet has dramatically changed the way state and local governments do business. Today, 
government agencies routinely make much more information about their programs, activities, 
and services available to the public by posting it on their websites. As a result, many people can 
easily access this information seven day a week, 24 hours a day. 

Many government services and activities are also provided on websites because the public is 
able to participate in them at any time of day and without the assistance of government 
personnel. Many government websites offer a low cost, quick, and convenient way of filing tax 
returns, paying bills, renewing licenses, signing up for programs, applying for permits or funding, 
submitting job applications, and performing a wide variety of other activities. 

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and, if the government entities receive federal 
funding, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 generally require that state and local governments 
provide qualified individuals with disabilities equal access to their programs, services, or 
activities unless doing so would fundamentally alter the nature of their programs, services, or 
activities or would impose an undue burden. One way to help meet these requirements is to 
ensure that government websites have accessible features for people with disabilities, using the 
simple steps described in this document. An agency with an inaccessible website may also meet 
its legal obligations by providing an alternative accessible way for citizens to use the programs or 
services, such as a staffed telephone information line. These alternatives, however, are unlikely 
to provide an equal degree of access in terms of hours of operation and the range of options and 
programs available. 

The World Wide Web Consortium (W3C) sets the main international standards for the World 
Wide Web and its accessibility.  W3C created the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG 
2.0 and 2.1) which are similar to Section 508, but on an international level.  WCAG 2.0 and 2.1 
requires specific techniques for compliance and is more current than Section 508.  

Many countries and international organizations require compliance with WCAG 2.0 and 2.1.  The 
guidelines are categorized into three levels of compliance:  A (must support), AA (should 
support), and AAA (may support).  Representatives from the accessibility community around the 
world participate in the evolution of these guidelines. 

Source: https://www.w3.org/WAI/standards-guidelines/wcag/ 

Visit http://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ for more details, do a website 
compliance check on your website and to download a PDF proposal. 

 

Page Number 66

https://www.w3.org/WAI/standards-guidelines/wcag/
http://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 7 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

2.1 Common Problems and Solutions in Website Accessibility? 

2.1.1 Problem: Images Without Text Equivalents 
Solution: Add a Text Equivalent to Every Image 

Adding a line of simple HTML code to provide text for each image and graphic will enable a user 
with a vision disability to understand what it is. Add a type of HTML tag, such as an “alt” tag for 
brief amounts of text or a “longdesc” tag for large amounts, to each image and graphic on your 
agency’s website. 

The words in the tag should be more than a description. They should provide a text equivalent of 
the image. In other words, the tag should include the same meaningful information that other 
users obtain by looking at the image. In the example of the mayor’s picture, adding an “alt” tag 
with the words “Photograph of Mayor Jane Smith” provides a meaningful description. 

In some circumstances, longer and more detailed text will be necessary to convey the same 
meaningful information that other visitors to the website can see. For example, a map showing 
the locations of neighborhood branches of a city library needs a tag with much more information 
in text format. In that instance, where the map conveys the locations of several facilities, add a 
“longdesc” tag that includes a text equivalent description of each location shown on the map – 
e.g., “City Center Library, 433 N. Main Street, located on North Main Street between 4th Avenue 
and 5th Avenue.” 

2.1.2 Problem: Documents Are Not Posted In an Accessible Format 
Solution: Post Documents in a Text-Based Format 

Always provide documents in an alternative text-based format, such as HTML or RTF (Rich Text 
Format), in addition to PDF. Text-based formats are the most compatible with assistive 
technologies. 

2.1.3 Problem: Specifying Colors and Font Sizes 
Solution: Avoid Dictating Colors and Font Settings 

Websites should be designed so they can be viewed with the color and font sizes set in users’ 
web browsers and operating systems. Users with low vision must be able to specify the text and 
background colors as well as the font sizes needed to see webpage content. 

2.1.4 Problem: Videos and Other Multimedia Lack Accessible Features 
Solution: Include Audio Descriptions and Captions 

Videos need to incorporate features that make them accessible to everyone. Provide audio 
descriptions of images (including changes in setting, gestures, and other details) to make videos 
accessible to people who are blind or have low vision. Provide text captions synchronized with 
the video images to make videos and audio tracks accessible to people who are deaf or hard of 
hearing. 

 

Page Number 67



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 8 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

2.1.5 Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG)  
 

Understanding the Four Principles of Accessibility 

The guidelines and Success Criteria are organized around the following four principles, which lay 
the foundation necessary for anyone to access and use Web content. Anyone who wants to use 
the Web must have content that is: 

1. Perceivable - Information and user interface components must be presentable to users 
in ways they can perceive. 

o This means that users must be able to perceive the information being presented 
(it can't be invisible to all of their senses) 

2. Operable - User interface components and navigation must be operable. 

o This means that users must be able to operate the interface (the interface cannot 
require interaction that a user cannot perform) 

3. Understandable - Information and the operation of user interface must be 
understandable. 

o This means that users must be able to understand the information as well as the 
operation of the user interface (the content or operation cannot be beyond their 
understanding) 

4. Robust - Content must be robust enough that it can be interpreted reliably by a wide 
variety of user agents, including assistive technologies. 

o This means that users must be able to access the content as technologies advance 
(as technologies and user agents evolve, the content should remain accessible) 

If any of these are not true, users with disabilities will not be able to use the 
Web. 

 

Under each of the principles are guidelines and Success Criteria that help to address these 
principles for people with disabilities. There are many general usability guidelines that make 
content more usable by all people, including those with disabilities. However, in WCAG 2.1, we 
only include those guidelines that address problems particular to people with disabilities. This 
includes issues that block access or interfere with access to the Web more severely for people 
with disabilities. 

 

See reference section at the end of this document for more information and websites for ADA, 
Usability and other important compliance issues and solutions.  

Page Number 68



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 9 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

VGlobalTech development and business management team shall study 
these compliance guidelines and with our technical capabilities apply 
these to make your website accessible, compatible and fully functional 
for all people, including those with disabilities.  

Visit https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ for details of our 
compliance process and expertise in this area. 

Please see References section for several resources on compliance. 

  

Page Number 69

https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 10 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

3.0 Pricing  
 

Website Complexity: Small Level Websites 
 
VGlobalTech team shall complete the following critical tasks for client website. 
All costs below are per website / CDD: 
 

3.1 Existing Website Remediation / New Website Build: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Task 

1.  Remediate existing website / Build new website from start for ADA and WCAG 
compliance requirements – ALL webpages on the website. Create accessibility 
document, code review, html updates, plugins / security updates required for 
ADA and WCAG compliance 

2.  Cross-Device Check (Website needs to appear as per ADA standards on Mobile 
Phones, Tablets, Desktops etc.). Braille Readers, Other assistance technology 
compatibility 

3.  ADA Standards application (as per Section 1 above). ADA.gov, Web Content 
Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 

4.  PDF Documents conversion (to Text, HTML etc.) as needed for ADA Compliance 
/ Reader Compliance (up to 2 years of documents shall be converted) 

5.  Create a webpage showing websites ADA Compliance efforts 

6.  Create customized footer with VGlobalTech’s ADA Compliance Seal (valid for 1 
year only) 

7.  Web Design Total: $3250/- (one time) 

Page Number 70



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 11 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

3.2 ADA Compliance Monthly Maintenance and Hosting  
 
Maintenance contract starts after initial conversion is completed (Optional Maintenance – It is 
critical to maintain compliance as websites get updated): 
The Annual Maintenance DOES NOT include the quarterly audits proposed in the previous 
section.  
 
Maintenance contract is required to receive VGlobalTech’s proprietary document conversion 
software (PDF to RTF) that allows you to easily convert documents or submit to VGlobalTech 
and get docs converted within less than 24 hrs. 

 Task 

1.  Assist with ADA Website Compliance tasks for current / new website on an ongoing basis – All 
new webpages and content that is put on the website – Customer must notify what updates 
are made (content shall be uploaded by client, VGlobalTech shall provide feedback on the 
content ADA requirements – This is as per customers’ request. Please contact VGlobalTech if a 
full maintenance, including content upload is required) 

2.  PDF Documents conversion (to Text, HTML etc) as needed (new documents during the 
maintenance year only) for ADA Compliance / Reader Compliance. VGlobalTech’s proprietary 
batch conversion software is included as long as the contract is valid (big time saver that 
creates compliant documents that can be uploaded to the website). There is no limit on how 
many documents you can convert using VGlobalTech’s software. If Auto conversion fails, 
VGlobalTech team shall perform manual OCR and conversion within 24 hrs.  

3.  Update footer with VGlobalTech’s ADA Compliance Seal (extended for current 
year) 

 Monthly Maintenance: (starts after initial compliance engagement 
quoted above is complete):  

$1000 /- (annually – can be broken into equal monthly 
charges)  
 
*support beyond 8 hrs / month shall be billed at $55 / hr separately 
**Annual maintenance can be broken up into smaller monthly bills.  

4.  Website hosting and backups – Premium hosting, unlimited file space, 
bandwidth, fast website response, regular automated backups, SSL certificates 
for secure site access (https protocol), 99.9% website uptime: 

$600 / year 
 Total Maintenance and Hosting: $1600 / year 

Page Number 71



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 12 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

 

3.3 Quarterly Technical and Human Audit 
 

This audit is as per the Florida Insurance Alliance guidelines. Please check with your 
insurance agency for specific requirements. Read more here: https://vglobaltech.com/wp-
content/uploads/2019/03/FIA_ADA_Guidelines-2019-2020.pdf 

VGlobalTech has partnered with a local agency for the visually impaired – LightHouse 
Works. LightHouse has developed a unique program for digital accessibility that is run by 
visually impaired personnel that are highly skilled in human auditing of websites and 
software as per the section 508 stipulations. Read more about our partnership here: 
https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ 

Together we are now able to provide not one but two compliance seals for all our 
customers: 

1. Digital Asset Technical Compliance Seal: 
 
 

 
  

 

2. Human Audit Seal:   

 
 
 

 

 
 
Cost for Technical and Human Audits:  
 

$1200 / Four Audits per Year 
(paid as a onetime fee) (Seals renewed every quarter) (Audits are conducted by 
VGlobalTech and LightHouse Agency together) 

VGlobalTech in-house technical team shall remediate / test the 
website / software for ADA, WCAG compliance. VGlobalTech’s 
technical design & development team is fully aware of the 
Americans with Disability Act (ADA), Web Content 
Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG), Section 508 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and overall the design principles of 
a professional, accessible, functional and responsive web 
design. The entire team has taken dedicated time and efforts to 
learn these design principles first hand. Our purpose is clear 
– Universal, Creative Web design that works for everyone, 
everywhere and every time! 

LightHouse Works’ visually impaired personnel shall actually 
test the website for compliance as per the section 508 and ADA 
requirements. The VGlobalTech technical team shall remediate 
any points discovered by LightHouse team and send the site for 
re-certification. Upon satisfactory completion LightHouse shall 
provide the Human Audit Seal that will be specific to the site and 
the VGlobalTech team shall put the seal on the site. This is an 
added layer of true Human Audit testing that provides full ADA 
compliance.  

Page Number 72

https://vglobaltech.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/FIA_ADA_Guidelines-2019-2020.pdf
https://vglobaltech.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/FIA_ADA_Guidelines-2019-2020.pdf
https://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 13 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

This proposal includes following points, stipulations terms and conditions: 

*(1) conference call or in person meetings per month with client to review metrics, results and 
monthly recaps *unless otherwise noted  

* email and phone communication 

*Anything out of the scope of work in the above proposal will be addressed and client will be 
immediately notified. After notification of additional work, a subsequent quote will be provided 
to cover that work. 

*Client is responsible to adhering to timelines as far as information required to complete the 
task is concerned. If timelines are not adhered to and exceed 15 business days past the current 
marketing months, last day, all work will end. A new month with new allocated costs will be 
presented for future work to commence. No refunds and owed work will be due unless 
otherwise agreed upon. An Invoice will be provided once signature approval of this project 
proposal. Payments will be made to VGLOBALTECH 

*Client is responsible for verifying quality of work, providing feedback, verifying that compliance 
has been met as required. VGlobalTech team shall not be responsible for any legal ramifications 
arising from work not done as per external agencies / organizations / associations needs if 
proper feedback is not provided by the customer. VGlobalTech’s work will be in best faith but 
cannot guarantee all compliance / legal needs since we are not the final authority in the ADA or 
WCAG compliance area. VGlobalTech shall not be liable for any legal ramifications arising from 
compliance issues and cannot be held responsible for any legal or other lawsuits.  

Refund Policy: The client may halt work and request for a refund within seven days of the date 
of signing this services agreement by mailing a signed letter to the main address listed on 
www.VGlobalTech.com website. If client requests a refund within seven days of the date of 
signing their agreement they shall be liable to pay for all work completed and will be refunded 
the remaining balance of the initial payment if billable work has not exceeded a charge that 
would be greater than client’s initial payment. If client requests a refund after the seven days 
from the date of the signing of the agreement client is liable to pay for all work completed plus 
an additional 25% of any remaining balance that may still be due. Once line item projects are 
complete no refunds will be issued. Confidentiality: All information between client and service 
provider  inclusive of technical and business information relating to proprietary ideas, 
patentable ideas and/or trade secrets, existing and/or contemplated products and services, 
research and development, production, costs, profit and margin information, finances and 
financial projections, customers, clients, marketing, and current or future business plans and 
models, regardless of whether such information is designated as “Confidential Information” at 
the time of its disclosure and will be treated as such and with absolute confidentiality and will 
not be shared or used, which will be maintained at all times.  The client is not allowed to disclose 
their price with any third parties.  Doing so is in breach of this agreement.  All information 
development will be shared and proprietary information and property between client and 
service providers. 

Page Number 73

http://www.vglobaltech.com/


 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 14 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

4.0 Proposal Acceptance:  
 
The VGlobalTech proposed solution and terms have been accepted by the customer and the 
VGlobalTech can proceed with the project. All payments shall be made according to this agreement. 
 

Select Proper Option Below, Sign and Date, Return to contact@vglobaltech.com: 
 

Option1: Website only 
Section 3.1: One time (website conversion and compliance cost): 

 
 

Option2: Website and Monthly Maintenance w/ Hosting 
Section 3.1: One time (website conversion and compliance cost)   

+   
 Section 3.2 ADA Compliance Monthly Maintenance and Hosting  

 

  Option3: Website and Quarterly Audits 
Section 3.1: One time (website conversion and compliance cost)   

+   
 Section 3.3 Quarterly Technical and Human Audit Testing 

 

  Option4: Website, Monthly Maintenance w/ Hosting and 
Quarterly Audits 

Section 3.1: One time (website conversion and compliance cost)   

+   
Section 3.2 ADA Compliance Monthly Maintenance and Hosting  

+   
  Section 3.3 Quarterly Technical and Human Audit Testing 

 
 
 
Signatures: 
 
 
     

For Customer                                        Date 

 
 
 
 
VB Joshi          

For VGlobalTech          Date 
 

Page Number 74



 

                                                             VGlobalTech.com ~ Experience Innovation                                       Page 15 of 15 

Your strategic partner for Web Design, Software, Marketing, and SEO solutions. 

Call: 321-947-7777  | Email: contact@VGlobalTech.com 
Private and Confidential Document. No part of this document shall be produced, sent, copied to any parties it is not intended for. It is 

intended for the entities listed clearly on this proposal. Any distribution without written consent shall be procecuted  

5.0 References:  
 

ADA Best Practices Tool Kit for State and Local Governments: 
https://www.ada.gov/pcatoolkit/chap5toolkit.htm 

 

U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Disability Rights Section 
https://www.ada.gov/websites2.htm 

 

Web design Standards: https://www.w3schools.com/ 

 

Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) https://www.w3.org/TR/WCAG21/ 

 

VGlobalTech Web Content Accessibility Implementation and Checkpoints: 
http://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/ 

 

 

Page Number 75

https://www.ada.gov/pcatoolkit/chap5toolkit.htm
https://www.ada.gov/websites2.htm
https://www.w3schools.com/
https://www.w3.org/TR/WCAG21/
http://vglobaltech.com/website-compliance/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4C. 
  

Page Number 76



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4Ci. 
  

Page Number 77



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

INSURANCE PROPOSAL PREPARED FOR 

Country Greens 
Community 

Development 
District 

October 1, 2019 – October 1, 2020 
 

 
 

PRESENTED BY: 
Robin Russell, Public Risk Advisor 

July 18, 2019 
 

 
 

P.O. Box 2416 | Daytona 
Beach, FL 32115 

Phone:  386.252.6176 | 
Fax:  386.239.4049 

www.bbpria.com 
 

 
 

 

TM 

Page Number 78



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Table	of	Contents	
	

Overview	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 1	
	 The Agency of Public Risk Insurance Advisors 
 An Introduction to Your Service Team 
 Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
 Claims Services & Safety and Risk Management Services 
 
General	Liability		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 2	
	
Public	Officials	&	Employment	Practices	Liability	 	 	 	 3	
	
Automobile	Liability	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 4	
	
Broker	Recommendation/Premium	Recapitulation	 	 	 	 5	
	 Notes of Importance 
 Compensation Disclosures 
 Carrier Financial Status  

Guide to Best’s Ratings 
	
Items	Required	Prior	to	Binding	 	 	 	 	 	 	 6	

Acceptance of Proposal – Premium Recapitulation 
Uninsured Motorist Form 
Preferred	Signature Page 

Page Number 79



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

	
Our	Story	

	
Public Risk Insurance Advisors 
(PRIA) is a proud member of the 
Brown & Brown family – an 80-
year-old, publicly traded, Florida 
corporation currently ranked as 
the 6th largest insurance 
brokerage in the United States of 
America. Our Brown & Brown 
family is now more than 10,000 
teammates, spanning from 
London to Los Angeles. Through 
our collaborative efforts, we 
design, place, and service more 
than $20 Billion in annual 
insurance products. We 
passionately undertake these 
efforts on behalf of our clients – 
ranging from individuals and 
small businesses, to state 
governments and Fortune 500 
companies. 
 

The PRIA team is a highly-specialized unit of insurance advisors 100% trained to deliver 
industry-leading services to public entities in the State of Florida.  Since 1992, we have 
continuously refined that specialization and enhanced our services, while becoming the 
largest public entity brokerage in Florida. Our team provides Property & Casualty and 
Employee Benefits services to governments from Key West to the Panhandle and represents 
more than 250 clients. 
 
We have proven over nearly three decades of service to local governments that we are a 
highly sophisticated and accountable team of insurance professionals, laser-focused on 
providing both world-class brokerage services and concierge-level support to our clients. We 
have built our reputation by empowering our governmental clients to outperform their 
industry peers, lower their cost of risk, and enhance their employee benefits programs - all 
while staying within their annual budgetary constraints. Our team is committed to serve 
those who serve the public – and provide superior service to our clients, their staff, and their 
employees. 

Page Number 80



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

An	Introduction	to	Your	Service	Team	
	

Account	Executives	
Matt	Montgomery	

Executive Vice President (386) 239-7245 mmontgomery@bbpria.com 

Robin	Russell,	CISR,	CSRM	
Director of Operations (386) 239-4044 rrussell@bbpria.com 

Paul	Dawson,	ARM‐P	
Senior Vice President / Public Risk Advisor 

(386) 239-4045 pdawson@bbpria.com 

Michelle	Martin,	CIC	
Vice President / Public Risk Advisor (386) 239-4047 mmartin@bbpria.com 

Brian	Cottrell,	CIC,	CRM	
Vice President / Public Risk Advisor 

(386) 239-4060 bcottrell@bbpria.com 

Kyle	Stoekel,	ARM‐P,	CIC	
Public Risk Advisor 

(386) 944-5805 kstoekel@bbpria.com 

Michelle	Perry,	CIC	
Public Risk Advisor	 (386) 333-6047 mperry@bbpria.com 

Victoria	“Tori”	Reedy	
 Executive Coordinator	

(386) 239-4043 vreedy@bbpria.com 

Service	Representatives	
Brittany	O’Brien,	CIC,	CRM	

Risk Management Department Leader 
(386) 239-8823 bobrien@bbpria.com 

Melody	Blake,	ACSR	
Public Risk Specialist (386) 239-4050 mblake@bbpria.com 

Patricia	“Trish”	Jenkins,	CPSR	
Public Risk Specialist (386) 239-4042 pjenkins@bbpria.com 

Karen	Bryan	
Public Risk Specialist 

(386) 239-4056 kbryan@bbpria.com 

Danielle	Coggon,	CISR	
Public Risk Specialist (386) 239-4048 dcoggon@bbpria.com 

Christina	Carter,	CIC	
Public Risk Specialist 

(386) 333-6069 ccarter@bbpria.com 

Danette	Mattingly	
 Public Risk Specialist 

(386) 239-4046 dmattingly@bbpria.com 

Alexa	Gray	
Assistant Public Risk Specialist (386) 239-4040 agray@bbpria.com 

 
 

Certificate	Requests:	certificates@bbpria.com						Claim	Reporting:	claims@bbpria.com	
 

 

Our	Service	Team	philosophy	focuses	on	accountability	at	all	levels	of	account	management.	Our	goal	is	
not	simply	to	meet	your	service	needs,	but	to	exceed	them.	All	the	employees	at	PRIA	are	dedicated	to	

achieving	this	goal	and	distinguishing	ourselves	from	the	competition. 

Page Number 81



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Preferred	Governmental	Insurance	Trust	(Preferred)	
Overview	

 
Several hundred members and millions in premiums prove that the Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust® 
fulfills what Florida needs: an insurance program exclusively customized and dedicated to the public sector. 
Preferred stays on the forefront of specialized insurance for property, casualty and workers’ compensation 
because it is non-profit and self-governed with a membership comprised solely of Florida public entities. 
 
Preferred’s history dates back to 1999. Its robust membership and financial strength, including consistent 
growth of surplus, stem from its conservative platform of managed risk. Preferred is just that: preferred	for 
unmatched public entity experience, innovation, stability and personalized service. 
 
 

Preferred’s	Member	Types	
Municipalities Counties Special Districts 

Public Schools Charter Schools Sheriff Departments 

Housing Authorities Aviation Authorities Transit, Port & Utility Authorities 

 
 
 

Preferred’s	Comprehensive	Coverages	
Property Workers’ Compensation General Liability 

Automobile Liability Automobile Physical Damage Law Enforcement Liability 

Public Officials Liability Employment Practices Liability Educators’ Legal Liability 

	
 
 

The	Power	of	Groups	and	People	
What does a specialized insurance trust do for you? In the case of Preferred, it gives you the purchasing power 
of a very large trust with billions of covered property values—far more financial negotiating power than a 
single public entity can muster. As a Preferred member, you are part of a formidable Florida insurance trust. 
 
The trust also transfers risks from any one public entity to the larger group. This provides all members of the 
trust better rating structures with less volatility. Preferred’s sole focus on government ensures that members’ 
unique needs are met. 
 
  

Page Number 82



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Underwriting	and	Administration	
Behind Preferred’s underwriting platform are decades of success built on integrity and market relationships. 
Our team of underwriters’ vast insurance expertise enhances the actuarial and scientific data used to 
underwrite individual risks within the trust. Services delivered are both broad and precise. Reliability is 
assured. The administrator for Preferred is Public Risk Underwriters of Florida, Inc.® (PRU), Florida’s premier 
public entity specialist of its kind. Preferred’s claims administrator is PGCS Claim Services. With more than 25 
years in claims experience, PGCS is Florida’s foremost governmental third-party administration company. 
 

        
 
Underwriting Highlights 
 Diverse	risk	financing	options: guaranteed cost, deductible, self-insured retention, all lines aggregate 
 Competitive	premium	discounts based on favorable experience and sound safety practices 
 Flexibility	of	coverage	design, including mono-line or package basis  
 Dynamic	financial	analysis conducted periodically to validate the trust’s superior financial standing 

 
Administration 
 General	counsel,	defense	counsel	and	litigation	services by specialists in governmental law 
 Membership	relations for networking and professional development 
 Legislative	Pulse	newsletter from Tallahassee-based law firm 
 Professional	marketing that guarantees local agent support, governmental knowledge and an ever-

growing group of members 
 Preferred	News—a quarterly publication covering the spectrum of government insurance issues 
 State	filing,	accounting	and	independent	CPA	audited	financials as needed 

	
	

Preferred’s	Expert	Boards	Know	Your	Business	
Preferred is governed and guided by people working daily in all segments of Florida’s public sector – from 
municipalities to counties to schools to special taxing districts. 
 
The Board of Trustees is comprised of elected public officials who work wisely and diligently to set policy, 
keeping Preferred as the premier public entity insurer of its kind. 
 

 	

Page Number 83



This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Preferred	Claims	Administration	

Preferred Governmental Claim Solutions, Inc. ® (PGCS) is the premier governmental third-party 
claims administrator in the state of Florida and administers the claims for Preferred Governmental 
Insurance Trust (Preferred).  Since its founding in 1956, PGCS has provided claims administration 
services exclusively to over 450 governmental entities including schools, cities, towns, counties, 
community development districts, and fire districts. Therefore, PGCS’s adjusters are extremely 
qualified to handle governmental tort liability and public sector workers’ compensation claims.  They 
are experts at investigating and handling police and firefighters presumption claims.  PGCS is 
sensitive to the politics involved in the handling of public entity claims. 

PGCS’s claims administration program consists of workers’ compensation, general liability, bodily 
injury, personal injury, property, auto liability, auto physical damage, employment practices liability, 
school leaders/educators liability and public officials liability.  Their claims staff has over 630 years 
of combined insurance experience and each has been with PGCS an average of 8 years.  Claims are 
handled under strict supervision in accordance with the PGCS workers’ compensation and liability 
claim handling procedure manuals and the PGCS claim best practices manual.  A random sampling of 
each adjuster’s claim files are audited on a monthly basis by a Quality Assurance Manager to ensure 
compliance.  

PGCS provides their clients with a dedicated Subrogation Unit to pursue reimbursements from at-
fault third parties.  Their current recovery rate is fifty-nine (59) percent of the claim costs expended. 
PGCS also has a dedicated excess reporting and recovery unit for communication to and securing 
reimbursement from the excess and/or reinsurance carriers. In addition, PGCS provides a state-
approved Special Investigation Unit (SIU) to prevent and pursue fraudulent claims.  PGCS offers 
rewards up to $10,000.00 for the arrest and conviction of persons committing workers’ 
compensation fraud.  This service is provided via a twenty-four hour seven day a week hotline. 

PGCS utilizes the RiskMaster system for claims processing.  This system captures a wide variety of 
data and allows the adjuster to enter an unlimited number of claim notes, process reserve changes, 
and issue claim payments.   Customized reports can be obtained from PGCS’s on-line system 
containing a multitude of data parameters that a client may choose to analyze.  The system can be 
accessed by clients via their website at www.pgcs-tpa.com.   

Communication with PGCS’s clients is the cornerstone of their claims administration program.  
Professional adjusters, nurses, management, quarterly in-depth claim review meetings, 24/7 claim 
reporting, utilization of attorneys specializing in public entity defense, litigation management, and 
return to work programs are just a sample of how PGCS has set the standard for the industry. 

PGCS is committed to partnering with their clients to provide professional and aggressive claim 
management programs.  While they are recognized as the leader in the industry, PGCS is always 
striving to improve the quality of their programs and expand the services that they offer. 

Page Number 84



This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Preferred	Safety	and	Risk	Management	Services	

The success of any public sector community is tied to its ability to protect and preserve its human 
physical assets. This basic premise serves as the cornerstone of an effective Safety Management 
program and underscores the importance of Safety and Risk Control to the community. Preferred’s 
Safety and Risk Management Department is very aware of the valuable contribution a comprehensive 
safety and risk control program makes to the bottom-line of any organization. 

At Preferred, Safety consultations originate with one basic thought—to recommend specific measures 
to minimize or eliminate the exposures that cause accidents. This does not mean that the workplace 
become no-risk utopias, but we expect our consultants to recommend measures to control and 
minimize all types of accidents, injuries and illnesses to our Preferred members’ operations and 
premises. 

Preferred is dedicated to meeting the challenge of the complex issues facing public sector 
organizations Disarming these issues and converting them into solutions which work to the 
advantage of our goal. Preferred’s approach to risk control incorporates the following elements: 

 Exposure	Identification – Assist management in determining areas where a chance of loss
might exist through cause trend analysis, work site evaluations, and facility inspections.

 Exposure	Measurement	and	Loss	Analysis – Loss analysis and a review of the consequences
of the exposures will be considered to develop alternative methods of control.

 Determination	 and	 Selection	 of	 Appropriate	 Risk	 Control	 Methods – Based on
measurement and analysis, specific recommendations and/or custom designed risk control
plan will be formulated. OSHA, as well as other Agency Standards will be applied and/or used
as a “Best Practice” measure when designing and formulating safety and risk control plans.

 Training	 and	 Safety	Management	 Consulting – After considering client needs specific
services and/or training will be formulated and initiated to fit the client’s need. Key Personnel
or specialty consulting services with the knowledge and skills needed to meet those identified
needs will be provided.

 Additional	Consulting	Services	Available – Preferred’s Safety & Risk Management has other
services available that may benefit our clients. These services include security evaluations and
review of existing safety and risk programs.

Preferred’s Safety and Risk Management Department evaluates the unique needs to each client, 
ultimately designing a program that is capable of being integrated into the overall safety and risk 
control efforts of each client. Preferred’s dedication to the problem-solving approach is the 
foundation of their Safety and Risk Management Service.  

Page Number 85



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

General	Liability	
	

Term:      October 1, 2019 to October 1, 2020 
 
Company:     Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 
 
Form:      Occurrence 
 

Coverage:	 Limit:	 Deductible:	
General	Liability	

Bodily Injury and Property Damage, per Occurrence $1,000,000 

$0 
Per Occurrence 

Personal Injury and Advertising Injury, per Person/Occurrence Included 

Products/Completed Operations, Aggregate Included 

Fire Damage, per Occurrence Included 

Medical Payments $2,500 

Employee Benefits Liability, per Occurrence $1,000,000 

Sublimits	
Vicarious Law Enforcement Liability, per Occurrence $1,000,000 

Same as General 
Liability 

Principle of Eminent Domain Including Inverse Condemnation, 
“Bert J. Harris, Jr., Private Property Rights Protection Act” per 
Occurrence / Annual Aggregate. 

$100,000 

Sewer Backup and Water Damage: 
 Non-Negligent Claims  
 Negligent Claims. 

 
$10,000/$200,000 

$200,000/$200,000 
Herbicide and Pesticide, per Occurrence $1,000,000 

	
Additional Coverages Included: 

1. EMT/Paramedic Professional Services 
2. Premises Operations 
3. “Insured” Contracts 
4. Host Liquor Liability 
5. Broad Form Property Damage Subject to $2,500 Personal Property of Others Sublimit 
6. Watercraft Liability (under 52 feet). See policy form for limitations 
7. Limited Worldwide Coverage 
8. Additional Covered Party 
9. Failure to Supply Water 

 
Notes of Importance: 

1. Premium is not audited. 
2. Defense Costs are paid in addition to policy limits. 
3. In the event an occurrence, accident or offense continues beyond the policy period, the applicable 

deductible would apply separately to each policy period in which the occurrence, accident or offense 
was committed or was alleged to have been committed. 

4. Limits of Liability are subject to Florida Statute 768.28. 
5. Deductible does not apply to claims expense	
	

Page Number 86



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

General	Liability	
 

Exclusions, but not limited to: 
 Expected or intended injury 
 Contractual Liability 
 Liquor Liability 
 Workers’ Compensation and similar laws 
 Employer’s Liability 
 Pollution 
 Aircraft, Auto or Watercraft 
 Mobile Equipment 
 War 
 Damage to Your Property, Product or Work 
 Damage to Impaired Property or Property Not Physically Injured 
 Recall of Products, Work or Impaired Property 
 Racketeering 
 Law Enforcement, except for vicarious liability arising out of an act or omission by a law 

enforcement agency that is not owned, operated or controlled by the “Covered party” if there is a 
contract with an outside agency to provide law enforcement for your entity. 

 Asbestos, Mold, Fungi, or Bacteria 
 Liability arising out of or caused or contributed to by any ownership, maintenance, operation, use, 

loading, unloading or control of or responsibility for any airfield, airport, aircraft, runway, hangar, 
building or other property or facility designed for, used, connected, associated or affiliated with 
or in any way related to aviation or aviation activities; this exclusion does not apply to premises 
exposure for those common areas open to the public including but not limited to parking areas, 
sidewalks, and terminal buildings. 

 Failure or inability to supply or any interruption of any adequate quantity of power, steam, 
pressure, or fuel 

 Subsidence, erosion or earth movement.  
 Hospital / Clinic Medical Malpractice or Health Care Facilities 
 Professional Health Care Services, but not including emergency medical services for first aid 

performed by emergency medical technicians, paramedics or Medical Director while in the course 
and scope of their duties. 

 ERISA 
 Actual or alleged illegal discrimination 
 Injunctive, declaratory or equitable relief 
 Actual or alleged deterioration, bursting breaking, leaking, inadequacy, design of, control of, 

maintenance of, or any other alleged responsibility for any structure device, or water course, 
natural or man-made, including, but not limited to: dams, reservoirs, levees, banks, embankments, 
gates, canals, ditches, gutters, sewers, aqueducts, channels, culvert, retaining walls, drains, tanks, 
watershed, or drains, a purpose of which is the containing, carrying, impeding, channeling, 
diverting, or draining of water or other liquid. Does not apply only as to the bursting or failure of 
man-made sewer, storm water, grey water or potable water supply pipes owned and maintained 
by Covered Party. 

 Sexual abuse after initial discover 
 

	 	

Page Number 87



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Public	Officials	Liability	
Employment	Practices	Liability	

	
Term:      October 1, 2019 to October 1, 2020 
 
Company:     Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 
 
Form:      Claims Made – Duty to Defend 
 

Coverage:	 Limit:	 Deductible:	
Public	Officials	Liability	

Retroactive Date: Full Prior Acts 
Per Claim $1,000,000 $0 

Per Claim Annual Aggregate $1,000,000 

Employment	Practices	Liability	
Retroactive Date: Full Prior Acts	

Per Claim $1,000,000 $0 
Per Claim Annual Aggregate $1,000,000 

Cyber	Liability	
Retroactive Date: 10/1/2018	

Each Claim $2,000,000 
Same as Public 

Officials Liability 
Aggregate for all Notification Costs $2,000,000 

Aggregate for all Regulatory Fines & Expenses $2,000,000 

Sublimits	
Employee Pre-Termination Legal Consultation Services 
 Per Employee 
 Aggregate 

 
$2,500 
$5,000 

Same as Public 
Officials Liability Non-Monetary Claims Defense Costs $100,000 

Cyber Liability – Social Engineering Financial Fraud $250,000 

Cyber Liability – PCI DSS $250,000 
 
*Coverages included in Cyber Liability include the following: 
 Media Content Services   First Party Business Interruption  Privacy  
 First Party Crisis Management  First Party Extortion Threat  Network Security  

	

Notes of Importance: 
 

1. Defense Costs are paid in addition to policy limits. 
2. Deductible does not apply to claims expense.  
3. Broadened definition of “Who is an Insured.” 
4. Limits of Liability are subject to Florida Statute 768.28. 

  

Page Number 88



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Public	Officials	Liability	
Employment	Practices	Liability	

 
Exclusions, but not limited to: 

 Criminal Acts 
 Non-Monetary relief except as provided in the Supplementary Payments 
 Bodily Injury, Personal Injury, Property Damage, Advertising Injury 
 Damages arising out of Inverse Condemnation, Eminent Domain, Temporary or Permanent taking, 

Adverse Possession, Dedication by adverse Use, Condemnation Proceedings, or claims brought under 
Florida Statute 70.001 the “Bert J. Harris Jr., Private Property Rights Protection Act” or any similar 
claim by whatever named called. 

 War, Invasion, Acts of foreign enemies, hostiles or warlike operations, strike, lock-out, riot, civil war, 
rebellion, revolution, insurrection or civil commotion 

 Failure to effect and maintain insurance 
 Fiduciary Liability 
 Pollution 
 Workers’ Compensation, Employers Liability and similar laws 
 Nuclear 
 ERISA of 1974, any similar state or local laws, and any rules and regulations promulgated thereunder 

and amendments thereto. 
 Infringement of copyright, trademark, plagiarism, piracy or misappropriation of any ideas or other 

intellectual property 
 Contractual Liability 
 Health Care Professional or Health Care Facilities 
 Prior and Pending claims 
 Workers’ Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act, OSHA, RICO, or ADA 
 Law Enforcement Activities 
 Insured vs. Insured 
 Bonds, Taxes or Construction contracts 
 Collective Bargaining Agreements 
 Capital Improvement to make property more accessible or accommodating to disabled persons 
 Punitive Damages 
 Return or improper assessment of taxes, assessments, penalties, fines, fees 
 Activities of any attorney-at-law, medical personnel, architect, engineer or accountant, in the scope of 

their professional duties, except for claims made against them as Public Officials or Employees 
 Media Wrongful Act 
 Access or Disclosure of Confidential or Personal Information and Data-related Liability 

Page Number 89



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Public	Officials	Liability	
Employment	Practices	Liability	

 
Claims Made Policy: 
 
When a policy is on a claims-made basis, coverage triggers based on the actual filing date or receipt of the 
claim, in addition to the date of loss or injury. It handles any insured loss or claim filed during the policy period, 
regardless of when the actual loss or injury occurred, subject to the retroactive date on the declarations. 
Claims-made coverage applies only to covered losses that occur after the retroactive date. 
 
 
Extended Reporting Periods: 
 
Preferred provides the following Extended Reporting Periods options in the event coverage is cancelled or 
non-renewed: 
 
Automatic	Extended	Reporting	Period – continued coverage granted for a period of 60 days following the 
effective date of termination or nonrenewal, but only for Claims first made during the 60 days and arising from 
Wrongful Acts taking place prior to the effective date of the termination or nonrenewal. 
 
Optional	Extended	Reporting	Period – The Public Entity shall have the right, upon payment of up to 200% 
of the expiring premium, to purchase an Optional Extended Reporting Period, for the period of 12 months 
following the effective date of the cancellation or nonrenewal, but only for Claims first made during the 
Optional Extended Reporting Period and arising from Wrongful Acts taking place prior to the effective date of 
the termination or nonrenewal. 
 
 

	
	

	 	

Page Number 90



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Automobile	Liability		
	

Term:      October 1, 2019 to October 1, 2020 
 
 
Company:     Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 
 
 

Coverage:	 Limit:	 Symbol	 Deductible:	
Automobile	Liability	(Based	on	00	Vehicles)	

Primary Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability – 
Combined Limit $1,000,000 8, 9 

$0 
Each Accident 

Personal Injury Protection Statutory 5 $0  
Per Person 

Medical Payments $5,000 2 N/A 

Uninsured Motorist Rejected 2 N/A 

 
Coverage and Notes of Importance: 
 

1. Defense Costs are paid in addition to policy limits. 
2. Hired and non-owned liability is included. 
3. Premium is based on number of vehicles and subject to adjustment if schedule is changed. 
4. Limits of Liability are subject to Florida Statute 768.28. 

 

Page Number 91



This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Automobile	Liability		

Description of Covered Auto Designation Symbols: 

SYMBOL	 DESCRIPTION	
1	 = ANY “AUTO” 
2	 = ALL OWNED “AUTOS” ONLY. Only those “autos” you own and or lease (and for Liability 

Coverage any “trailers” you don’t own while attached to power units you own). This also 
includes all those “autos” you acquire ownership of after the coverage agreement begins. 

3	 = OWNED PRIVATE PASSENGER “AUTOS” ONLY. Only the private passenger “autos” you 
won. This includes those private passenger “autos” you acquire ownership of after the 
coverage agreement begins. 

4	 = OWNED “AUTOS” OTHER THAN PRIVATE PASSENGER “AUTOS” ONLY. Only those “autos” 
you won that are not of the private passenger type (and for Liability Coverage any 
“trailers” you don’t own while attached to power units you own). This includes those 
“autos” not of the private passenger type you acquire ownership of after the coverage 
agreement begins. 

5	 = OWNED “AUTOS” SUBJECT TO NO-FAULT. Only those “autos” you own and or lease that 
are required to have No-Fault benefits in the state where they are licensed or principally 
garaged. This includes those “autos” you acquire ownership of after the coverage 
agreement begins provided they are required to have No-Fault benefits in the state where 
they are licensed or principally garaged. 

6	 = OWNED “AUTOS” SUBJECT TO A COMPULSORY UNINSURED MOTORIST LAW. Only those 
“autos” you own and or lease that because of the law in the state where they are licensed 
or principally garaged are required to have and cannot reject Uninsured Motorists 
Coverage. This includes those “autos” you acquire ownership of after the coverage 
agreement begins provided they are subject to the same state uninsured motorists 
requirement. 

7	 = SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED “AUTOS”. Only those “autos” described in ITEM THREE of the 
Declarations for which a premium charge is shown (and for Liability Coverage any 
“trailers” you don’t own while attached to any power unit described in ITEM THREE). 

8	 = HIRED “AUTOS” ONLY. Only those “autos” you hire rent or borrow. This does not include 
any “auto” you lease, hire, rent, or borrow from any of your employees or partners or 
members of their households. 

9	 = NONOWNED “AUTOS” ONLY. Only those “autos” you do not own, hire, rent or borrow that 
are used in connection with your business. This includes “autos” owned by your 
employees or partners or members of their households but only while used in your 
business. 

Page Number 92



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Premium	Recapitulation	
	
	

	 Annual	
Premium	

Check	Option	
	 Accept Reject 
	 	 	 	

General Liability     $4,500.00  	  	
  	 	
Public Officials / Employment Practices Liability $2,812.00   	  	
  	 	
Automobile Liability    $   500.00  	  	
  	 	
  	 	
Two-Year Coverage Agreement*   	  	
*Please	refer	to	the	next	page	for	details	on	the	Two‐Year	Offer	  	 	

 
 
 
I	authorize	PRIA	to	request	the	underwriters	to	bind	coverage	on	the	items	indicated	above	and	
acknowledge	receipt	of	the	Compensation	and	Financial	Condition	Disclosure(s)	provided	in	this	
proposal. 
	
    _______________________________________________________ 
    (Signature) 
 
    _______________________________________________________ 
    (Name & Title) 
 
    _______________________________________________________ 
    (Date) 

 
 
 

Page Number 93

KBryan
Highlight

KBryan
Highlight

KBryan
Highlight

KBryan
Sign Here



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Preferred	2‐Year	Option	
Important	Note:	

	
Preferred’s quote covers two (2) annual twelve month periods, from 10/01/2019 12:01:00 
AM to 10/01/2020 12:01:00 AM and from 10/01/2020 12:01:00 AM to 10/01/2021 
12:01:00 AM. The following conditions apply in addition to all other conditions of this quote: 
 

A. All Aggregate limits reset for the period 10/01/2020 12:01:00 AM to 10/01/2021 
12:01:00 AM. Losses applying to one annual coverage period will not erode the 
aggregate limits of another annual coverage period. 
 

B. The premium for the period 10/01/2020 12:01:00 AM to 10/01/2021 12:01:00 AM 
will be determined based on updated exposure values for the period. 

 
C. Rates for the period 10/01/2020 12:01:00 AM to 10/01/2021 12:01:00 AM will be 

identical to those for the period commencing 10/01/2019 12:01:00 AM unless OIR 
approves a WC rate reduction effective during the 10/01/2019 to 10/01/2020 period. 
In the event of an approved workers’ compensation rate decrease, we will honor the 
reduced rates for the second twelve month installment.  Premiums in any case are 
subject to the following: 

 
1. NCCI Experience modification factors will be applied as promulgated. 
2. Changes to Schedules: Property, Inland Marine, and Automobile  
3. Payroll 
4. Number of Employees 

 
D. Due to scheduled changes in rating algorithms, there may be some fluctuation in 

property premium per location, however, the composite property rate for the building 
& contents schedule will remain the same.  
 

E. In the event of cancellation of any line of business within 90 days after the first day of 
either annual coverage period, the premium for such line(s) shall be 25% minimum 
earned. In the event of cancellation of any line of business following the initial 90 days 
of each annual coverage period, a penalty equal to 60 days premium of such line(s) of 
business shall become earned, any provision of the agreement to the contrary 
notwithstanding. . 
 

1. This penalty is earned and payable regardless of when notice of such 
cancellation is given, or the effective date of such cancellation. 

  

Page Number 94



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Notes	of	Importance:	
 
1. Quotes provided in the proposal are valid until 10/01/2019. After this date terms and conditions are 

subject to change by the underwriters. 
 

2. Preferred is not subject to the Florida Insurance Guaranty Act, in the event it becomes unable to meet its 
claims payment obligations. However, insured is named on excess of loss policies. 
 

3. Some of the Carriers of the Preferred excess of loss policies are issued pursuant to the FL Surplus 
Lines laws.  Entities insured by surplus lines carriers do not have the protection of the FL 
Insurance Guaranty Act to the extent of any right of recovery for the obligation of an insolvent, 
unlicensed insurer. 
 

4. Quote is subject to review and acceptance by Preferred Board of Trustees. 
 

5. Premiums are subject to change if all lines of coverage quoted are not bound. Premiums	are	subject	to	
25%	minimum	premium	upon	binding.	
 

6. Not all coverages requested may be provided in this quotation. 
 

7. Flood quotes from NFIP may be available. Please advise your agent if you have property located in zones 
A or V and would like to have separate NFIP quotes. 
 

8. The Trust requires all Members to maintain valid and current certificates of workers’ compensation 
insurance for all work performed by persons other than its employees.  
 

9. The	 total	 premium	 is	 due	within	 30	 days	 of	 inception.	 Premium	 financing	 can	 be	 arranged	 if	
needed.	
 

10. Quote is not bound until written orders to bind are received from the insured and the Trust subsequently 
accepts the risk. 
 

11. Should signed application reveal differing details/data than original application received, the entire 
quote/binder is subject to revision and possible retraction. 
 

12. Higher limits of liability may be available. Please consult with your agent. 
 

13. This proposal is based upon exposures to loss made known to the Public Risk Insurance Advisors. Any 
changes in exposures (i.e. new operations, new acquisitions of property or change in liability exposure) 
need to be promptly reported to us in order that proper coverage may be put into place. 
 

14. This	proposal	is	intended	to	give	a	brief	overview.	Please	refer	to	coverage	agreements	for	
complete	information	regarding	definition	of	terms,	deductibles,	sub‐limits,	restrictions	and	
exclusions	that	may	apply.	In	the	event	of	any	differences,	the	policy	will	prevail.	

Page Number 95



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

PREFERRED	Compensation	Disclosure	
	
We appreciate the opportunity to assist with your insurance needs.  Information concerning additional 
compensation paid to other entities for this placement and related services appears below.  Please do not 
hesitate to contact us if any additional information is required. 
 
Our office is owned by Brown & Brown, Inc.   Brown & Brown entities operate independently and are not 
required to utilize other companies owned by Brown & Brown, Inc., but routinely do so. 
	
For the 2019 – 2020 policy year, your insurance was placed with Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
(Preferred). Preferred is an insurance trust formed by Florida public entities through an Interlocal Agreement 
for the purpose of providing its members with an array of insurance coverages and services. Preferred has 
contracted with entities owned by Brown & Brown, Inc. to perform various services. As explained below, those 
Brown & Brown entities are compensated for their services.  
 
Preferred has contracted with Public Risk Underwriters (PRU), a company owned by Brown & Brown, Inc., to 
administer Preferred’s operations. The administrative services provided by PRU to Preferred include: 
 

 Underwriting 
 Coverage review 
 Marketing 
 Policy Review 
 Accounting 
 Issuance of Preferred Coverage Agreements 
 Preferred Member Liaison 
 Risk Assessment and Control 

 
Pursuant to its contract with Preferred, PRU receives an administration fee, based on the size and complexity 
of the account, of up to 12.5% of the premium you pay to Preferred. PRU may also receive commissions from 
insurance companies with whom it places your coverage, which commissions are derived from the premium 
you pay to Preferred. Multiple underwriters may be involved in the placement of your coverage. If so, they also 
may be compensated for their services from the premium you pay to Preferred.   
 
Preferred has also contracted with Preferred Governmental Claims Solutions (PGCS), a company owned by 
Brown & Brown, Inc., for purposes of administering the claims of Preferred members. The services provided 
by PGCS to Preferred may include: 
 

 Claims Liaison with Insurance Company 
 Claims Liaison with Preferred Members 
 Claims Adjustment 

 
 

Page Number 96



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

PREFERRED	Compensation	Disclosure	(continued)	
 
Pursuant to its contract with Preferred, PGCS receives a claims administration fee for those accounts which 
PGCS services of up to 5% of the non-property portion of the premiums you pay to Preferred.   
 
Preferred also utilizes wholesale insurance brokers, some of which (such as Peachtree Special Risk Brokers 
and MacDuff Underwriters) are owned by Brown & Brown, Inc., for the placement of Preferred’s insurance 
policies, and for individual risk placements for some Preferred members (excess and surplus lines, professional 
liability coverage, etc.). The wholesale insurance broker may provide the following services: 
 

 Risk Placement  
 Coverage review 
 Claims Liaison with Insurance Company 
 Policy Review 
 Current Market Intelligence 
 

The wholesale insurance broker’s compensation is derived from your premium, and is largely dictated by the 
insurance company. It typically ranges between 10% and 17% of the premiums you pay to Preferred for your 
coverage. Some wholesale brokers used by Brown & Brown to place your coverage may also act as Managing 
General Agents for various insurance companies, and may be compensated directly by those insurance 
companies for their services in placing and maintaining coverage with those particular companies.  
 
The wholesale insurance brokerage utilized in the placement of property insurance was Peachtree Special Risk 
Brokers, which is a company owned by Brown & Brown Inc. Furthermore, any professional liability coverage 
afforded by the package of insurance you purchased was acquired through Apex Insurance Services, which is 
also a company affiliated with Brown & Brown Inc. 
 

 	

Page Number 97



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Notice	of	Carrier	Financial	Status	

 
Risk Management Associates, Inc. dba Public Risk Insurance Advisors, and its parent company, Brown & 
Brown, Inc. (collectively “Brown & Brown”) do not certify, warrant or guarantee the financial soundness or 
stability of any insurance carrier or alternative risk transfer or pooling entity.  We endeavored to place your 
coverage with an insurance carrier with an AM Best Company financial rating of “A-” or better.* While Brown 
& Brown cannot certify, warrant or guarantee the financial soundness or stability of  any insurance carrier or 
alternative risk transfer or pooling entity or otherwise predict whether the financial condition of any such 
entity  might improve or deteriorate, we are hereby providing you with notice and disclosure of financial 
condition so that you can make an informed decision regarding the placement of coverage.  Accordingly, with 
receipt of this notice you acknowledge the following with regard to the placement and any subsequent renewal 
of the coverage indicated below: 
 
 

 Brown & Brown may have other options for your insurance placement, including quotations with 
insurance carriers holding an “A-” or better rating from AM Best Company. Alternative quotes may be 
available with an A- or better rated carrier upon your request. 
 

 Coverage is being renewed through Preferred	Governmental	Insurance	Trust (“Preferred”), which 
is as a Florida local government self-insurance fund established pursuant to Section 624.4622, Florida 
Statutes, as such Preferred	is not rated by the AM Best Company. 

 
 Preferred is not subject to the protections afforded by any state guaranty fund or association. 
 
 The financial condition of insurance companies and other coverage providers including local 

government self-insurance funds like Preferred may change rapidly and that such changes are beyond 
the control of Brown & Brown. 

 
 You should review the financial and membership information from Preferred and agree to abide by 

the conditions of membership established by Preferred. 
 
 You should consider the information provided, including the Preferred coverage quote and coverage 

placement and review it with your accountants, legal counsel and advisors. 
 
 
Named	Insured: Country Greens Community Development District 
Line	of	Coverage(s):	 General Liability/Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability/Automobile 
Policy	Number(s): PK2FL1 0354010 19-13 01-1 
Policy	Period(s): 10/1/2019 to 10/1/2020 
Date	of	Notice: 8/1/2019 

 
 
*	AM	Best	Rating	Guide:	 Rating	for	Stability:		A++	to	F	=	Highest	to	lowest	rating	
	 	 	 Financial	Size	Category:		XV	to	I	‐	Largest	to	smallest	rating 

  

Page Number 98



This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

Country	Greens	Community	Development	District		

Guide	to	Bests	Ratings	
Best	Category	 Rating	 Description	
Secure A++ Superior 
Secure A+ Superior 
Secure A Excellent 
Secure A- Excellent 
Secure B++ Very Good 
Secure B+ Very Good 
Vulnerable B Fair 
Vulnerable B- Fair 
Vulnerable C++ Marginal 
Vulnerable C+ Marginal 
Vulnerable C Weak 
Vulnerable C- Weak 
Vulnerable D Poor 
Vulnerable E Under Regulatory Supervision 
Vulnerable F In Liquidation 
Vulnerable S Rating Suspended 
Not Rated NR-1 Insufficient Data 
Not Rated NR-2 Insufficient Size and/or operating experience 
Not Rated NR-3 Rating Procedure Inapplicable 
Not Rated NR-4 Company Request 
Not Rated NR-5 Not Formally Followed 
Rating Modifier u Under Review 
Rating Modifier q Qualified 
Affiliation Code g Group 
Affiliation Code p Pooled 
Affiliation Code r Reinsured 

Guide	to	Best’s	Financial	Size	Categories	
Reflects size of  I	 Less than $1,000,000 
insurance company II	 $1,000,000 - $2,000,000 
based on their  III	 $2,000,000 - $5,000,000 
capital, surplus IV	 $5,000,000 - $10,000,000 
and conditional V	 $10,000,000 - $25,000,000 
reserve funds in VI	 $25,000,000 - $50,000,000 
U.S. dollars. VII	 $50,000,000 - $100,000,000 

VIII	 $100,000,000 - $250,000,000 
IX	 $250,000,000 - $500,000,000 
X	 $500,000,000 - $750,000,000 
XI	 $750,000,000 - $1,000,000,000 
XII	 $1,000,000,000 - $1,250,000,000 
XIII	 $1,250,000,000 - $1,500,000,000 
XIV	 $1,500,000,000 - $2,000,000,000 
XV	 Greater than $2,000,000,000 

Public Risk Insurance Advisors always strives to place your coverage with highly secure insurance companies. We 
cannot, however, guarantee the financial stability of any carrier. 

Page Number 99



ĀȀ ȀĀ !ȀĀ"#$%#ĀȀ ȀĀ !Ȁ!Ā

&'%$(#)'*+(,- ./!01Ā#Ȁ234ȀĀȀ#Ā"5Ā2#ȀĀ#5#Ā

6%7(,89(#.,%7:;(;#<=- .,(>(,,(;#?%7(,@*(@$8A#B@C',8@D(#E,'C$

)8*(;#6%7(,(;#.8,$=-

F9,((*(@$#)'*+(,-

Ā

6%'@$,=#?,((@C#6%**'@:$=#G(7(A%H*(@$#G:C$,:D$

IJ#0%,*K,H$.,:@$#G8$(-#L !! !ȀĀ"

Page Number 100

KBryan
Sign Here

KBryan
Highlight

KBryan
Highlight

KBryan
Highlight

KBryan
Highlight



ĀȀ 
ĀȀ !"#$%&'('

ĀȀ 
ĀȀ !"#$%&'('
ĀȀ !"#$%&'('
ĀȀ !"#$%&'('

ĀȀ 

! )
)
)

ĀȀ ĀȀ !"#$%&'('
 ""#$%&'()*'

*+,# !-. (/!012212)34 5&67,88Ȁ#!5,9#. &+(!*.9(:+; 

ĀȀ 

ĀȀ 

*<2=>3!)?@A)3)!34B3?!)3!B!
3

CȀ&# +D!E+((#8!CȀ77&#, D!-(F(%Ȁ;7(# !-,8 +,$ 

3)1)312)233)1)312)34

ĀȀ 

!

G)!ĀȀ !"#$%&'('

ĀȀ !"#$%&'('

!)ĀȀ !"#$%&'('

ĀȀ 

!

ĀȀ !"#$%&'('

ĀȀ 

Page Number 101

KBryan
Sign Here

KBryan
Highlight

KBryan
Highlight

KBryan
Highlight

KBryan
Highlight



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4Cii. 
  

Page Number 102



Page | 1

Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors

Is pleased to provide a

Proposal of Insurance Coverage for:

Country Greens Community Development District

Please review the proposed insurance coverage terms and conditions carefully.

Written request to bind must be received prior to the effective date of coverage.

The brief description of coverage contained in this document is being provided as an accommodation only and is not intended to cover or describe all 
Coverage Agreement terms. For more complete and detailed information relating to the scope and limits of coverage, please refer directly to the 
Coverage Agreement documents. Specimen forms are available upon request.

Page Number 103



Page | 2

About FIA

Florida Insurance Alliance (“FIA”), authorized and regulated by the Florida Office of Insurance Regulation, is a 
non-assessable, governmental insurance Trust. FIA was created in September 2011 at a time when a large 
number of Special Taxing Districts were having difficulty obtaining insurance.
Primarily, this was due to financial stability concerns and a perception that these small to mid-sized Districts 
had a disproportionate exposure to claims. Even districts that were claims free for years could not obtain 
coverage. FIA was created to fill this void with the goal of providing affordable insurance coverage to Special 
Taxing Districts. Today, FIA proudly serves and protects more than 650 public entity members.

Competitive Advantage
FIA allows qualifying Public Entities to achieve broad, tailored coverages with a cost-effective insurance
program. Additional program benefits include:

 Insure-to-value property limits with no coinsurance penalties
 First dollar coverage for “alleged” public official ethics violations
 Proactive in-house claims management and loss control department
 Complimentary risk management services including on-site loss control, property schedule

verification and contract reviews
 Online Risk Management Education & Training portal
 Online HR & Benefits Support portal
 HR Hotline
 Safety Partners Matching Grant Program

How are FIA Members Protected?
FIA employs a conservative approach to risk management. Liability risk retained by FIA is fully funded prior to 
the policy term through member premiums. The remainder of the risk is transferred to reinsurers. FIA’s 
primary reinsurers, Lloyds of London and Hudson Insurance Company, both have AM Best A XV (Excellent) 
ratings and surplus of $2Billion or greater.

In the event of catastrophic property losses due to a Named Storm (i.e., hurricane), the program bears no 
risk as all losses are passed on to the reinsurers. FIA purchases property reinsurance to withstand the 1,000-
year storm event (probability of exceedance .1%). This level of protection is statistically 2 to 3 times safer 
than competitors and industry norms. FIA members’ property claims resulting from Hurricane Irma in 2017 
amounted to less than 4% of the per occurrence coverage available.

What Are Members Responsible For?
As a non-assessable Trust, our members are only responsible for two items:

 Annual Premiums
 Individual Member Deductibles

FIA Bylaws prohibit any assessments or other fees.

Additional information regarding FIA and our member services can be found at www.fia360.org.

Page Number 104



Page | 3

Quotation being provided for:

Country Greens Community Development District
c/o Inframark
313 Campus St
Celebration, FL 34747

Term: October 1, 2019 to October 1, 2020

Quote Number: 100119430 

PROPERTY COVERAGE

SCHEDULE OF COVERAGES AND LIMITS OF COVERAGE
COVERED PROPERTY
Total Insured Values – Blanket Building and Contents – Per Schedule on file totalling Not Included
Loss of Business Income Not Included
Additional Expense Not Included
Inland Marine
Scheduled Inland Marine Not Included

It is agreed to include automatically under this Insurance the interest of mortgagees and loss payees where 
applicable without advice.

Valuation Coinsurance
Property Replacement Cost None
Inland Marine Actual Cash Value None

DEDUCTIBLES: Not Applicable Per Occurrence, All other Perils, Building & Contents and 
Extensions of Coverage.

Not Applicable Total Insured Values per building, including vehicle 
values, for “Named Storm” at each affected location 
throughout Florida subject to a minimum of Not 
Applicable per occurrence, per Named Insured.

Per Attached Schedule Inland Marine

Special Property Coverages
Coverage Deductibles Limit
Earth Movement Not Applicable Not Included
Flood Not Applicable Not Included
Boiler & Machinery Not Included
TRIA Not Included
*Except for Zones A & V see page 8 (Terms and Conditions) excess of NFIP, whether purchased or not

TOTAL PROPERTY PREMIUM Not Included

Page Number 105



Page | 4

Extensions of Coverage
If marked with an "X" we will cover the following EXTENSIONS OF COVERAGE under this Agreement, These limits of liability do not 
increase any other applicable limit of liability.

(X) Code Extension of Coverage Limit of Liability

A Accounts Receivable $500,000 in any one occurrence

B Animals $1,000 any one Animal
$5,000 Annual Aggregate in any one agreement period

C Buildings Under  Construction
As declared on Property Schedule, except new buildings being erected 
at sites other than a covered location which is limited to $250,000 
estimated final contract value any one construction project.

D Debris Removal Expense $250,000 per insured or 25% of loss, whichever is greater

E

Demolition Cost,
Operation of Building
Laws and Increased Cost of 
Construction

$500,000 in any one occurrence

F Duty to Defend $100,000 any one occurrence

G Errors and Omissions $250,000 in any one occurrence 

H Expediting Expenses $250,000 in any one occurrence

I Fire Department Charges $50,000 in any one occurrence

J Fungus Cleanup Expense $50,000 in the annual aggregate  in any one occurrence 

K
Lawns, Plants, Trees and 
Shrubs

$50,000 in any one occurrence

L Leasehold Interest Included 

M Air Conditioning Systems Included 

N New locations of current 
Insureds

$1,000,000 in any one occurrence for up to 90 days, except 60 days for 
Dade, Broward, Palm Beach from the date such new location(s) is first 
purchased, rented or occupied whichever is earlier.  Monroe County on 
prior submit basis only

O
Personal property of 
Employees

$500,000 in any one occurrence

P Pollution  Cleanup Expense $50,000  in any one occurrence

Q Professional Fees $50,000  in any one occurrence

R Recertification of Equipment Included

S Service Interruption Coverage $500,000 in any one occurrence

T Transit $1,000,000 in any one occurrence

U Vehicles as Scheduled 
Property

Included

V Preservation of Property $250,000 in any one occurrence

W
Property at Miscellaneous 
Unnamed Locations

$250,000 in any one occurrence

X
Piers, docs and wharves as 
Scheduled Property

Included on a prior submit basis only

Page Number 106



Page | 5

CRIME COVERAGE

Description Limit Deductible
Forgery and Alteration Not Included Not Included

Theft, Disappearance or Destruction Not Included Not Included

Computer Fraud including Funds Transfer Fraud Not Included Not Included

Employee Dishonesty, including faithful performance, per loss Not Included Not Included

AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE

COVERAGES SYMBOL LIMIT DEDUCTIBLE

LIABILITY N/A Not Included Not Included

HIRED NON OWNED LIABILITY 8,9 $1,000,000 $0

PERSONAL INJURY PROTECTION 5 STATUTORY $0

AUTO MEDICAL PAYMENTS N/A Not Included Not Included

UNINSURED MOTORISTS/ UNDERINSURED MOTORISTS N/A Not Included Not Included

AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE N/A Not Included Not Included

Symbol 8, 9 Hired Non-Owned Autos only

Y
Glass and Sanitary Fittings 
Extension

$25,000 any one occurrence

Z Ingress / Egress 45 Consecutive Days

AA Lock and Key Replacement $2,500 any one occurrence

BB
Awnings, Gutters and 
Downspouts

Included

CC Civil or Military Authority 45 Consecutive days and one mile

Section II B1 Business Income $1,000,000 in any one occurrence

Section II B2 Additional Expenses $1,000,000 in any one occurrence

FIA 120 Active Assailant(s) $1,000,000 in any one occurrence

Page Number 107



Page | 6

GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE (Occurrence Basis)

Bodily Injury and Property Damage Limit $1,000,000

Personal Injury and Advertising Injury Included

Products & Completed Operations Aggregate Limit Included

Employee Benefits Liability Limit, per person $1,000,000

Herbicide & Pesticide Aggregate Limit $1,000,000

Medical Payments Limit $5,000

Fire Damage Limit Included

No fault Sewer Backup Limit $25,000/$250,000

General Liability Deductible $0

PUBLIC OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY (Claims Made)

Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability Limit Per Claim $1,000,000

Aggregate $2,000,000

Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability Deductible $0

Supplemental Payments: Pre-termination $2,500 per employee - $5,000 annual aggregate.
Non-Monetary $100,000 aggregate.

Cyber Liability sublimit included under POL/EPLI

Media Content Services Liability
Network Security Liability
Privacy Liability
First Party Extortion Threat 
First Party Crisis Management 
First Party Business Interruption
Limit: $100,000 each claim/annual aggregate

Page Number 108



Page | 7

PREMIUM SUMMARY

Country Greens Community Development District
c/o Inframark
313 Campus St
Celebration, FL 34747

Term: October 1, 2019 to October 1, 2020

Quote Number: 100119430 

PREMIUM BREAKDOWN

Property (Including Scheduled Inland Marine) Not Included

Crime Not Included

Automobile Liability Not Included

Hired Non-Owned Auto Included

Auto Physical Damage Not Included

General Liability $4,750

Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability $2,250

TOTAL PREMIUM DUE $7,000

IMPORTANT NOTE
Defense Cost - Outside of Limit, Does Not Erode the Limit for General Liability, Public Officials Liability, and 
Employment related Practices Liability.

Deductible does not apply to defense cost. Self-Insured Retention does apply to defense cost.

Additional Notes:

Quote Subject to:
Fully completed application (Outstanding GL and EPLI questions answered favorably)

Page Number 109



Page | 8

PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT
Application for Membership in the Florida Insurance Alliance

The undersigned local governmental entity, certifying itself to be a public agency of the State of Florida as 
defined in Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, hereby formally makes application with the Florida Insurance 
Alliance (“FIA”) for continuing liability and/or casualty coverage through membership in FIA, to become 
effective 12:01 a.m., 10/01/2019, and if accepted by the FIA’s duly authorized representative, does hereby 
agree as follows:

(a) That, by this reference, the terms and provisions of the Interlocal Agreement creating the Florida 
Insurance Alliance are hereby adopted, approved and ratified by the undersigned local governmental 
entity. The undersigned local governmental entity certifies that it has received a copy of the 
aforementioned Interlocal Agreement and further agrees to be bound by the provisions and obligations 
of the Interlocal Agreement as provided therein;

(b) To pay all premiums on or before the date the same shall become due and, in the event Applicant fails 
to do so, to pay any reasonable late penalties and charges arising therefrom, and all costs of collection 
thereof, including reasonable attorneys’ fees;

(c) To abide by the rules and regulations adopted by the Board of Directors;

(d) That should either the Applicant or the Fund desire to cancel coverage; it will give not less than thirty 
(30) days prior written notice of cancellation;

(e) That all information contained in the underwriting application provided to FIA as a condition precedent 
to participation in FIA is true, correct and accurate in all respects.

Country Greens Community Development District

(Name of Local Governmental Entity)

By:
Signature Print Name

Witness By:
Signature Print Name

IS HEREBY APPROVED FOR MEMBERSHIP IN THIS FUND, AND COVERAGE IS EFFECTIVE October 1, 2019

By:
Administrator

Page Number 110



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fifth Order of Business 
  

Page Number 111



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5Ci. 
  

Page Number 112



Country Greens CDD
Field Management Report

August 2019

Ariel Medina | Field Services Supervisor

313 Campus Street, Celebration, FL 34747
(O) 407-566-4122| (M) 281-831-0139 |
www.inframarkims.com

FREDDY BLANCO | Assistant
Maintenance Manager

313 Campus Street| Celebration, FL 34747
Office: 1.407.566.1935| Mobile:
1.407.947.2489|www.inframarkims.com

Page Number 113



COMPLETED ITEMS:

• Meet withYellowstone on 6/13/19, 7/1/19, 8/12/19 to discuss several areas of concern and service map.

• Followed up with Simple Solutions during the month of July on regards to the pressure washing project. Simple
Solutions completed the scope of work accordingly

• Reviewed and processed invoices on a weekly basis

• Returned phone calls to HOA and residents regarding landscaping concerns

• Respond to emails and communications as needed

• Installed meeting signs

Performed light review on 7/12/19 – replaced 3 flood lamps and 1 ballast at columns and sign area.

ATTACHMENTS

• Yellowstone Landscaping Report

• Inframark Landscaping Review

2 8/19/2019 Ariel Medina – Field Services Supervisor (m) 281-831-0139, (o) 407-5664122, ariel.medina@Inframark.com

Page Number 114



3 8/19/2019 Ariel Medina – Field Services Supervisor (m) 281-831-0139, (o) 407-5664122, ariel.medina@Inframark.com

Yellowstone Landscaping Report

Page Number 115



Date :
Property :
Senior Account Manager :
Assistant Account Manager: Larry Ostin

Maintenance Activities

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

Mowing Activities

.

.

. Identified Drain Areas have been string trimmed and cleared.

Irrigation Activities

.

.

.

.

Fertilization and Pest Control Activities

.

.

Projected Work

.

.

.

.

.

Mowing of all areas completed weekly.

Trim and detail shrubs beds at community entrances (Cardinal, 437 and 44) ongoing maintenace.

Preform weekly detail to all Annual beds at community entrance

Weed control is ongoing in all shrub beds to include pre-emergent herbicide

Dead Pine Tree removal proposal has been provided.

Palm Pruning proposal has been provided.

Major tree elevation pruning proposal has been provided.

Weed control in all shrub beds including pre-emergent

Pruning of all shrubs is continuos during weekly visits.

Areas indentified as CDD have been cleared where possible. A proposal has been provided for Brush Hog work in three areas.

Tree canopies elevated along 44 west side along fence

Turf Appllication made for Weed Control, Fungicide amd Insecticide on 6-25-19 with a followup treatment on 7-30-19

Shrub Application made on 6-27-19. (20-20-20, Fungicide and Inseecticide.)

1 rotor found broken Clock A. Repair made.

Tuesday, August 6, 2019

Leak found at the pump Clock B. Repair completed. The following day.

Next Inspection scheduled for 8-15 and 8-16

Continue treating visible fire ant mounds throughout property as needed

Annual flowers cleaned free of weeds. New Annuals have ben installed.

Country Greens CDD
Michael H Wilding

Preform weekly mowing and string trimming of roadways and entrances to the community. Berm within the community has
been mowed as well.

Perform weekly mowing service on all Zoysia/St Augustine along Cardianl Ln, 437 and 44 community entrances.

All irrigation timers have been inspected and checked for coverage.. Adjustments have been made.

Page Number 116



4 8/19/2019 Ariel Medina – Field Services Supervisor (m) 281-831-0139, (o) 407-5664122, ariel.medina@Inframark.com

Yellowstone Proposals

Page Number 117



,

AMOUNTITEM DESCRIPTION

Terms:

main:
mobile:

Proposal For

Date: 07/12/2019
Proposal #21166

From: Michael Wilding

Location

Celebration, FL 34747

Net 30Country Greens Community Development District: Brush Hog New CDD
Areas

313 Campus Street

Misc Service

Client Notes

Brush Hog of new areas requested to be maintained. These areas are overgrown and need to be reclaimed as 
brush is overgrown.

 

1 of 2PageYellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 407-814-2400

Page Number 118



 

 

Signature above authorizes Yellowstone Landscape to perform work as described above and verifies that the prices and
specifications are hereby accepted. All overdue balances will be charge a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate.
Limited Warranty: All plant material is under a limited warranty for one year. Transplanted plant material and/or plant material that
dies due to conditions out of Yellowstone Landscape's control (i.e. Acts of God, vandalism, inadequate irrigation due to water
restrictions, etc.) shall not be included in the warranty.

x

Signature

$1,200.00SUBTOTAL

SALES TAX $0.00

TOTAL $1,200.00

Print Name:

Contact Assigned To
Michael Wilding
mwilding@yellowstonelandscape.com

Title:

Date:

2 of 2PageYellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 407-814-2400

Page Number 119



Property Name: Country Greens Community Development District

QUANTITYDESCRIPTION

main: 407-566-4122
mobile: 281-831-0139
ariel.medina@inframark.com

Proposal For

Date: 07/22/2019
Proposal #22654

From: Michael Wilding

Location

313 Campus Street
Celebration, FL 34747

Celebration, FL 34747
Inframark

Terms: Net 30Mainline repair at pump

313 Campus Street

AMOUNTUNIT PRICE

Irrigation Labor 2.00 $65.45 $130.90

INV - Irrigation Parts 1.00 $30.00 $30.00

Client Notes
Repair to mainline at pump well. 2" male adapter cracked at fitting. 

Signature above authorizes Yellowstone Landscape to perform work as described above and verifies that the prices and
specifications are hereby accepted. All overdue balances will be charge a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate.
Limited Warranty: All plant material is under a limited warranty for one year. Transplanted plant material and/or plant material that
dies due to conditions out of Yellowstone Landscape's control (i.e. Acts of God, vandalism, inadequate irrigation due to water
restrictions, etc.) shall not be included in the warranty.

x

Signature

$160.90SUBTOTAL

SALES TAX $0.00

TOTAL $160.90

Office:
mwilding@yellowstonelandscape.com

Assigned To
Michael Wilding

Date:

Title:

Contact

Print Name:

1 of 1PageYellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 386-437-6211

Page Number 120



313 Campus Street
Celebration, FL 34747

Inframark

AMOUNTITEM DESCRIPTION

Terms:

main: 407-566-4122
mobile: 281-831-0139
ariel.medina@inframark.com

Proposal For

Date: 08/16/2019
Proposal #25926

From: Michael Wilding

Location

Celebration, FL 34747

Net 30Country Greens Community Development District: Valve Repair 437

313 Campus Street

Irrigation Repairs

Client Notes
Replacement of leaking valve found during maintenance visit. 

Signature above authorizes Yellowstone Landscape to perform work as described above and verifies that the prices and
specifications are hereby accepted. All overdue balances will be charge a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate.
Limited Warranty: All plant material is under a limited warranty for one year. Transplanted plant material and/or plant material that
dies due to conditions out of Yellowstone Landscape's control (i.e. Acts of God, vandalism, inadequate irrigation due to water
restrictions, etc.) shall not be included in the warranty.

x

Signature

$446.35SUBTOTAL

SALES TAX $0.00

TOTAL $446.35

Print Name:

Contact Assigned To
Michael Wilding
mwilding@yellowstonelandscape.com

Title:

Date:

1 of 1PageYellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 407-814-2400

Page Number 121



313 Campus Street
Celebration, FL 34747

Inframark

AMOUNTITEM DESCRIPTION

Terms:

main: 407-566-4122
mobile: 281-831-0139
ariel.medina@inframark.com

Proposal For

Date: 07/31/2019
Proposal #23749

From: Michael Wilding

Location

Celebration, FL 34747

Net 30Country Greens Community Development District: Dead Pine Removals

313 Campus Street

Arbor

Client Notes

PINE Removal – Remove and cut stump low for six (6) Pines – Four (4) along SR44 and two (2) along
SR437  

 

Signature above authorizes Yellowstone Landscape to perform work as described above and verifies that the prices and
specifications are hereby accepted. All overdue balances will be charge a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate.
Limited Warranty: All plant material is under a limited warranty for one year. Transplanted plant material and/or plant material that
dies due to conditions out of Yellowstone Landscape's control (i.e. Acts of God, vandalism, inadequate irrigation due to water
restrictions, etc.) shall not be included in the warranty.

x

Signature

$2,740.00SUBTOTAL

SALES TAX $0.00

TOTAL $2,740.00

Print Name:

Contact Assigned To
Michael Wilding
mwilding@yellowstonelandscape.com

Title:

Date:

1 of 1PageYellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 407-814-2400

Page Number 122



Property Name: Country Greens Community Development District

QUANTITYDESCRIPTION

main: 407-566-4122
mobile: 281-831-0139
ariel.medina@inframark.com

Proposal For

Date: 08/14/2019
Proposal #25584

From: Michael Wilding

Location

313 Campus Street
Celebration, FL 34747

Celebration, FL 34747
Inframark

Terms: Net 30Replacement of indian hawthorne right side at entry across water featue

313 Campus Street

AMOUNTUNIT PRICE

General Labor Rate 10.00 $52.00 $520.00

Formosa azaleas 55.00 $13.75 $756.25

Client Notes

Removal of declining indian hawthorne on the right side of the entry. New lavender formosa azaleas shall be 
installed. 

1 of 2PageYellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 386-437-6211

Page Number 123



Signature above authorizes Yellowstone Landscape to perform work as described above and verifies that the prices and
specifications are hereby accepted. All overdue balances will be charge a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate.
Limited Warranty: All plant material is under a limited warranty for one year. Transplanted plant material and/or plant material that
dies due to conditions out of Yellowstone Landscape's control (i.e. Acts of God, vandalism, inadequate irrigation due to water
restrictions, etc.) shall not be included in the warranty.

x

Signature

$1,276.25SUBTOTAL

SALES TAX $0.00

TOTAL $1,276.25

Office:
mwilding@yellowstonelandscape.com

Assigned To
Michael Wilding

Date:

Title:

Contact

Print Name:

2 of 2PageYellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 386-437-6211

Page Number 124



Property Name: Country Greens Community Development District

QUANTITYDESCRIPTION

main: 407-566-4122
mobile: 281-831-0139
ariel.medina@inframark.com

Proposal For

Date: 08/14/2019
Proposal #25575

From: Michael Wilding

Location

313 Campus Street
Celebration, FL 34747

Celebration, FL 34747
Inframark

Terms: Net 30Plant Replacements CR48 Entrance

313 Campus Street

AMOUNTUNIT PRICE

General Labor Rate 16.00 $52.00 $832.00

Indian Hawthorne 10.00 $13.75 $137.50

Loropetalum 7.00 $13.75 $96.25

Asiatic jasmine 100.00 $5.50 $550.00

Sand Cord Grass 75.00 $13.75 $1,031.25

Client Notes
Replacement of plant material that has declined or has been removed from the existing landscape shrub beds. 

Signature above authorizes Yellowstone Landscape to perform work as described above and verifies that the prices and
specifications are hereby accepted. All overdue balances will be charge a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate.
Limited Warranty: All plant material is under a limited warranty for one year. Transplanted plant material and/or plant material that
dies due to conditions out of Yellowstone Landscape's control (i.e. Acts of God, vandalism, inadequate irrigation due to water
restrictions, etc.) shall not be included in the warranty.

x

Signature

$2,647.00SUBTOTAL

SALES TAX $0.00

TOTAL $2,647.00

1 of 2PageYellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 386-437-6211

Page Number 125



Office:
mwilding@yellowstonelandscape.com

Assigned To
Michael Wilding

Date:

Title:

Contact

Print Name:

2 of 2PageYellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 386-437-6211

Page Number 126



Property Name: Country Greens Community Development District

QUANTITYDESCRIPTION

main: 407-566-4122
mobile: 281-831-0139
ariel.medina@inframark.com

Proposal For

Date: 08/14/2019
Proposal #25570

From: Michael Wilding

Location

313 Campus Street
Celebration, FL 34747

Celebration, FL 34747
Inframark

Terms: Net 30Valve repair along RT437

313 Campus Street

AMOUNTUNIT PRICE

Irrigation Labor 3.00 $65.45 $196.35

2" scrubber valve 1.00 $200.00 $200.00

Client Notes
Valve box leaking along RT437. Installation of new valve. 

Signature above authorizes Yellowstone Landscape to perform work as described above and verifies that the prices and
specifications are hereby accepted. All overdue balances will be charge a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate.
Limited Warranty: All plant material is under a limited warranty for one year. Transplanted plant material and/or plant material that
dies due to conditions out of Yellowstone Landscape's control (i.e. Acts of God, vandalism, inadequate irrigation due to water
restrictions, etc.) shall not be included in the warranty.

x

Signature

$396.35SUBTOTAL

SALES TAX $0.00

TOTAL $396.35

Office:
mwilding@yellowstonelandscape.com

Assigned To
Michael Wilding

Date:

Title:

Contact

Print Name:

1 of 1PageYellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 386-437-6211

Page Number 127



Inframark Landscaping Review

5 8/19/2019 Ariel Medina – Field Services Supervisor (m) 281-831-0139, (o) 407-5664122, ariel.medina@Inframark.com

Page Number 128



Issue Location
Date of Drive-

thru Status Field Manager Comments Photos

Trimming At the 44 and 437 7/10/2019 Ongoing Silverthorne shrub need to be trimmed.

Dead pine tree At Terragona Dr 7/10/2019 Pending Please provide proposal to remove dead pine tree.

Dead pine tree At Tuscany Ave. Pending Pending Please provide proposal to remove two dead pine tree.

Mowing Corner at Terragona
Dr. and Marbella dr. Pending Not completed Area next to the house is pending for mowing.

Weed control At Cardinal Ln and
Companero Dr. 7/10/2019 Completed Weeds present in both sides of the access and exit area. A significant

improvement is seen with Weed control after the last four week

Country Greens Landscaping Review

Page Number 129


	Country Greens Agenda Package 8.26.19
	Third Order of Business
	3A.
	Minutes of June 24, 2019 Meeting
	Fourth Order of Business
	4A.
	Financial Statements and Check Register
	4B.
	4Bi.
	ADA Site Compliance
	4Bii.
	Campus Suite
	4Biii.
	VGlobal Tech
	4C.
	4Ci.
	PGIT PKG Proposal
	4Cii.
	Egis FIA Proposal
	Fifth Order of Business
	5Ci.
	Field Management Report



